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PREMIUM GLACIER MINERAL
WATER IN THE MARKET
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OUR MISSION:
SERVE THE BEST QUALITY
WATER TO THE WORLD
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/\%? QE/ ﬁ ﬂyﬂj Mina Guli, an amazing water environmentalist and founder of the
ﬁ/b5700 [+ 1E iE = f E Ve 74— water NGO Thirst ran through seven deserts around the world in
2016, a distance equivalent to 40 marathons, to promote her mission

of water protection and responsible water consumption. Mina was
awarded the title of “World Youth Leader” by the World Economic

Forum in 2010, chosen as one of 50 outstanding future Australian
? leaders in 2011, and selected by Fortune in 2016 as one of the 50

greatest leaders in the world - a list that she shared with Tim Cook
o jim (CEO Apple), Jeff Bezos (CEO Amazon), Angela Merkel (German

N = Chancellor) and the Pope.
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OPERATION BETWEEN

ATER RESOURCES
ID THIRST WILL
THEN-6100°S IMPACT
ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
- RESPONSIBILITY

CeEEbEL kR A BRI

The cooperation between Tibet Water Resources Ltd.
and Thirst began in November 2015. The cooperation
reflects our commitment to sustainability and
environmentally responsible practices. Over the past
year Tibet 5100 has enjoyed a strong brand exposure
through our sponsorship in many international media
outlets including CNN, BBC, ABC, CCTV as well as
other networks and web media. Thirst promoted water
saving education through programmes in primary and
secondary schools in China so as to inspire the ideas
and attitude of saving water. So far more than 700,000
students have been involved. Furthermore, Thirst
promoted its missions through events with high media

coverage such as the Run4Water programme, in 2016

Mina's run through 7 deserts and in 2017 run for water

along 6 rivers in 6 continents.

Thirst is an organization which tackling the
world's water scarcity crisis by educating
and engaging the next generation of

global consumers.
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STAKEHOLDERS INFORMATION
B AEH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of 2016 final results
AGM 2017
Announcement of 2017 interim results (tentative)

Announcement of 2017 final results (tentative)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2017 (“AGM 2017”)

The AGM 2017 will be held on Monday, 29 May 2017. The notice of the AGM
2017, which constitutes part of the circular to shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders"), is sent together with this Annual Report to Shareholders.
This Annual Report, the circular to Shareholders, the notice of the AGM 2017
and the proxy form are also available on the Stock Exchange's website (http://
www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (http://www.twrl | I5.net).

Summary of 2016 price of the shares of the Company
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Summary of 2016 turnover of the shares of the Company
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For determining Shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM 2017:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:00 p.m. on 22 May 2017

documents for registration

Closure of register of members 23 May 2017 to
29 May 2017

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 29 May 2017

MAY 5H 2017

WE TH FR

O Key Date EZ H Hf

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

Phone: +852 2849 3399

Fax: +852 2849 3319
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PRODUCT PROFILE
A BIIT

TIBET GLACIER
MINERAL WATER
CO., LTD.

78 58 2K || 5 R 7K
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PREMIUM GLACIAL HIGH QUALITY

MINERAL WATER NATURAL DRINKING

& k)| R 2k WATER
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TIBET TIANDI

GREEN BEVERAGE
DEVELOPMENT

CO. , LTD.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AVTh ¢

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. (THE “COMPANY")

THE BOARD (THE “BOARD”) OF DIRECTORS (THE “DIRECTORS”)

OF THE COMPANY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YUE Zhigiang

Mr. LIU Chen

Mr. WONG Hak Kun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. JIANG Xiaohong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHOW Waij Kit

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. CHOW Wai Kit
Mr. LIU Chen

INDEPENDENT EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Kirkland & Ellis
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum Solicitors

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

PR Concepts Asia Limited

16/F., Methodist House,

36 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Phone: +852 2117 086

Fax: +852 2117 0869
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3401, 34th Floor, China Resources Building
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

Phone: +852 2849 3399

Fax: +852 2849 3319

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111

Cayman Islands

WEBSITES TO ACCESS COMPANY INFORMATION*

http://www.twrl | 15.net
http://www.hkexnews.hk

STOCK CODE ON MAIN BOARD OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

115

* contents of the websites do not form part of this Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (TOGETHER,
THE “GROUP”), | AM PLEASED TO PRESENT THE GROUP’S ANNUAL

REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2016.

EFEREE

EAERERFRAREMEAT
(BB ARE)RRRIEE
A
IEFERER -

DIVERSIFICATION STRATEGY ON PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

The Company is committed to provide quality water from Tibet to the market.
In the past two years, as we reinforced the leading position of our flagship
Tibet 5100 Glacial Spring Water product in the high-end mineral water market
in China, we also rolled out new packaging formats as well as launching new
brand series in response to market demand. Now, our clearly stratified series
of products forms a pyramid structure portfolio, covering all segments of the
market. As at the end of 2016, our “Tibet 5100 Glacial Spring Water” (“5100
Glacial Water") included our premium “Diamond Series” which we now also
distribute in attractive glass bottles, and flagship PET bottles with classic and
convenient packaging. We also offered 0L and |12L sizes as part of our “5100
Family Soft Barrelled Water” line to meet demands from households and office.
The Group's newest product was launched at a relatively lower price point
under the “Gesang Spring” label and targets a broader market. Our associated
company, Tibet Highland Natural Water Limited (“Highland Natural Water")
also developed the "“Easy Joy Zhuoma Spring” brand, which is jointly launched

with Sinopec's sales companies.

Diamond Series (Glass
Bottle and PET Bottle)

AR RN PET )

Flagship Series
RS

5100 Family Soft
Barrelled Water - .

5100 REL ERAK

Tibet 5100
Glacial Spring Water
5100 B
k)R K

Z L E mER R

ARABB N RTSRE R FK] o ARE
B RMELERBESIOOEEERETEH
SHERKTISEEMAIER - BED
BRERELTINEREENRERY
BERTRETRAEMMNES FTERNERE
BoBEZT—RFER HMHISI00FH
UK TER K (5100411 K 1) 2 683 AR
SIAMBEIR e E MR EA RS R
HAEREAPETR B M EEE @500k
NIK] - RBRREMPA AP E KA 10L/12L
5100 REEERAK] - UEHRKETAE
BATSHMERMERRIRAK - ARk HE
FREREE ARG EZENHRMAOMEE
DA ARERRAKERARA(ERRR
KDEHHMEERI 57 - 235X -

High quality

natural Gesang Spring Water
drinking water BER
BEXARRAK -

Natural

drinking 2
water i
RAKAK |

Easy Joy Zhuoma Spring
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHEE

STEADY GROWTH OF RESULTS

2016 was a very satisfactory year for the Group in terms of both sales and profit.

We have successfully strengthened our growth platform.

With our continuous endeavor throughout the year, our water business
segment maintained steady growth. During the year of 2016, the water business
segment’s sales volume reached 51,630 tonnes and revenue reached RMB484
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 5% and 10%, respectively.
Sales volume of 5100 Glacial Water was down 20% from 2015 to 2016 as the
procurement agreement with China Railway Express Co., Ltd. (“CRE") expired
in June 2015; however, if excluding CRE's sales volume, sales volume of 5100
Glacial Water and total water products sales volume increased 30% and 71%
respectively in the same period, largely due to strong performance in the retail
channel. Products under our new “Gesang Spring” brand, which was launched
in early 2016, recorded promising sales volume of 12,611 tonnes and generated
revenue of RMB39.71 million. Major brand “Easy Joy ® Zhuoma Spring” sold by
Highland Natural Water achieved an impressive sales volume of 156,788 tonnes
in 2016, representing an increase of 98% over 2015 and achieved revenue of
RMB4 1 I million which was up 82% over 2015. The enhanced sales performance
of the Group resulted in a corresponding increase in profit, which will be further
elaborated in the “Management Discussion & Analysis” (“MD&A") section below.
Our diversified product portfolio helps us build a stronger brand identity and
allows us to extend our reach through different channels to various segments
of the market. Our quality water from Tibet has built a unique segment in the

market.

Our beer business continued to record satisfactory results in terms of both
revenue and profit despite a challenging market environment. In 2016, Tibet
Tiandi Green Beverage Development Co., Ltd.'s (“Tiandi Green") sales volume
of beer products reached 60,456 tonnes and revenue of beer products reached
RMB384 million, which represented a year-on-year decrease of 3% and 2%,
respectively; while the gross profit margin improved and remained at a high level
among the industry peers. At present, 98% of our beer products are sold in the
Tibet Autonomous Region. Our plan is to leverage the synergies generated from
our water business to expand the sales of our beer business through quality
channels outside the Tibet Autonomous Region so we can introduce our unique

beer products to more consumers.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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MARKET-ORIENTED BUSINESS STRATEGY

In 2016, we further strengthened our retailing business. In particular and in
addition to traditional retail channels, we targeted a number of selected channels
for development, including star hotels, cinemas, airports, e-commerce platforms,
restaurants and healthcare and entertainment venues, and has resulted in
significant sales growth in these channels.

Also, we targeted the domestic family market in China as well as the overseas
markets. For the domestic family market, we fully leveraged our diversified
product mix and offered flexible combo packages to household customers, who
can choose between our large barrel sizes (10L/12L) “5100 Family Soft Barrelled
Water"”, our bottled packaging sizes for our flagship “5100 Glacial Water”
and the “Gesang Spring” label. This strategy has allowed a greater number of
consumers and giving them opportunities to enjoy our high quality water from
Tibet. We also took advantage of our highly efficient logistics network to provide
convenient delivery services to household users, thereby adding more value to
our product offerings.

For the overseas markets, we successfully launched our “Diamond Series” “5100
Glacial Water” in Hong Kong in early 2016. It was the first time that we started
selling our products outside the mainland China. Currently, our “Diamond Series”
water products are available in most of Hong Kong's major retailers and are
gradually being sold in a number of high-end channels, including star hotels and
entertainment outlets. We also work with some international brands to promote
co-brand water products in their chain stores. This is an important first step in
developing our international business.

DEEPEN STRATEGIC CHANNEL COOPERATION AND DRIVE PRODUCT
PROMOTION

During the past year, we developed new strategic partnership and enhanced our
cooperation with existing partners. This strategy yielded solid results in terms of
both sales performance and brand building. We continued to cooperate with Air
China, Hainan Airlines and a number of other airlines in an effort to place our
flagship “5100 Glacial Water” bottled product on more flights. We also launched
a new cooperation program with CRE where our new “Gesang Spring” product
is now available to passengers on its railway network. Our coverage of gas
station convenience stores now reaches a remarkable number of 20,000 Sinopec
store locations, and we have started working with PetroChina and our products
will be available in its convenience stores across |0 provinces in China. As for
household customers, we have partnered with Country Garden to provide our
bottled water products to its users of hotels and apartments. We have invested
in an associate together with Kweichow Moutai Winery (Group) Co., Ltd to
promote “5100 Family Soft Barrelled Water”, and we have quickly expanded
the distribution of our new “Gesang Spring” product through community
convenience stores via their key supplier, Zhongshang Huimin.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHEE

SUPPORT TIBET AND CONTRIBUTE TO SOCIETY

We have always strived to balance corporate growth with regional economic
development in Tibet. In August 2016, the United Nations Development
Program (UNDP), in collaboration with the Development Research Centre of
the State Council, jointly released the “China National Human Development
Report 2016" in Beijing. The report used our Group as an example of developing
local economy in Tibet and highlighted our experience in promoting the unique
local water industry. Our case study emphasized the benefits of providing
development-oriented aid to underdeveloped regions in Tibet instead of just
handing out one-off relief measures. In 2016, we continued to support the
conservation and protection of water sources and the environment in Tibet, and
actively participated in a variety of “water conservation” and other charitable
activities in Tibet. As a national enterprise with deep roots in Tibet, we are
dedicated to improving the well-being of the people in Tibet in terms of living
standards and cultural quality, and at the same time raise awareness of respecting

the pristine environment in which we operate.

INTRODUCTION OF STRATEGIC SHAREHOLDER

In January 2017, Khorgos Tianshan No.| Industrial Investment Fund Limited
Partnership (“Khorgos Tianshan No.l") entered into an agreement with Tibet
Water Resources Limited (“Water Resources”), the controlling shareholder
of the Company, to acquire 8% of the shares of the Company. Upon
completion of the transaction, Khorgos Tianshan No.| will become the single
largest shareholder of the Company. Khorgos Tianshan No.| is an industrial
investment fund that specializes in cross-border mergers and acquisitions. It
is managed by Xinjiang Tianshan Industrial Investment Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. as the general partner and co-funded by Xinjiang Financial Investment Co.,
Ltd., Shenwanhongyuan Group Co., Ltd. and other limited partners. According
to Khorgos Tianshan No.l, the transaction is a significant strategic investment
project in response to China's Western Development strategy and in support of
the economic development of Tibet and Xinjiang regions, and Khorgos Tianshan
No.| will leverage its advantage as an industrial investment fund with its state-
owned mixed-ownership, mobilize and allocate its resources to support the
Company's management team with the aim of expanding the market share of our
products and increasing the competitiveness of the Group. Furthermore, Khorgos
Tianshan No.| hopes to contribute to the economic development of China and
its border areas. As always, our senior management team will make our best
efforts to deliver better performance for the Group and create greater value for

both our shareholders and our society.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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PROSPECTS

In 2017, our Group will continue our diversification, market-oriented and
internationalization strategy, develop retail channels and strategic partnerships,
further generate synergies between our water business and our beer business,
in order to realize our mission of “sharing quality Tibet water with the whole
world". We have confidence that the good growth momentum we have

experienced in 2016 will continue in the year to come.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to our management
team and all our employees for their hard work and contribution to the Group
over the past year. | would also like to thank our shareholders, investors,
business partners and loyal customers for their support over the years. We look

forward to continue on positive performance in the year to come.

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN

Chairman

24 March 2017
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Revenue (RMB million)
KAARBEEER)

Earnings per share-basic and diluted (RMB cents)

BRER - EXARBE(ARED)

2016 11.98

All%
2015 10.78
2014 13.37 A
2013 17.18 A
2012 15.99 A

Gross profit margin (%)

EF=E (%)

/-

2016 868
A4%
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Profit attributable to owners of the company (RMB million)

FRRAEEAREFNB(AREEER)

All%

Sales volume (in tonnes)

HEE (W)

2016 112,086

2015 111,512

ﬁu%

2014 116,577 A

2013 103,120 /X
2012 83,846 A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, we continued our endeavors in supplying high quality products and
premium services to our customers.

Also in 2016, the market was characterized by strong competition and a
challenging economic environment, which has a general impact on premium
products. Nevertheless, the Group has continued to increase its total revenue
in 2016 by 4% and increase its profit attributable to owners of the Company in
2016 by 11%, in comparison with 2015, largely as a result of a continuation of
diversifying product profiles, deeply penetrating its retail channels, and developing
more strategic partnerships.

Regarding the core business of our water business segment, sales volume of
5100 Glacial Water was down 20% from 2015 to 2016 as the procurement
agreement with CRE expired in June 2015; however, if excluding sales of 5100
Glacial Water to CRE, sales volume and revenue of the Group's 5100 Glacial
Water have achieved impressive growth rates of 30% and 8%, respectively,
in the same period, largely due to strong performance in the retail channel.
Also, products under our new “Gesang Spring” brand, which was launched in
early 2016, recorded satisfactory sales volume of 12,611 tonnes and generated
revenue of RMB39.71 million. “Easy Joy* Zhuoma Spring” sold by our associate,
Highland Natural Water, saw a pickup in popularity at Easy Joy convenience
stores at Sinopec gas stations throughout China in 2016. The Group's share of
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post-tax profits of Highland Natural Water was RMB29 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 38%.

In 2016, our water products have been sold throughout the mainland China
and Hong Kong, mainly through our strategic partners and other retail channels
including supermarkets, convenient stores, hotels, cinemas, airports, e-commerce
platforms, restaurants and healthcare and entertainment venues, etc. As at 3|
December 2016, in mainland China, the geographical coverage of our third party
retail sales channel of our water products covered 108 cities, and the numbers
of distributors and sales outlets were 249 and 9,776, respectively. In 2016, the
revenue of our water products from retail distribution channel accounts for
more than 60% of the total revenue of our water products. Revenue from our
5100 Glacial Water bottled water redemption card (“Water Card”) business
accounted for approximately 8% of revenue in our water products business in
2016.

Regarding our beer business segment, in 2016, sales volume of our beer products
reached 60,456 tonnes and revenue of our beer products reached RMB384
million, which represented a year-on-year decrease of 3% and 2%, respectively;
while the gross profit margin improved and remained at a high level among the
industry. In 2016, our beer products were sold in the Tibet Autonomous Region
(“Tibet") mainly through retail channels including supermarkets, convenient
stores, restaurants and entertainment outlets. The proportion of revenue of
our beer products within and outside Tibet to the total revenue of our beer

products remained at 98% and 2%, respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

In 2016, total sales of the Group amounted to RMB868 million, representing an
increase of RMB36 million or 4% from the total sales of the Group of RMB832
million in 2015. In 2016, both the water business and the beer business were
developing stably, and the revenue generated from our water business segment
was RMB484 million, representing an increase of 10% from the sales of RMB44|
million in 2015, contributed by the increase of sales of water products and sales
of bottle preforms and caps; the revenue generated from our beer business
segment in 2016 was RMB384 million, representing a decrease of 2% from the
sales of RMB392 million in 2015.

SALES VOLUME

In 2016, the total sales volume of the Group amounted to |12,086 tonnes (2015:
11,512 tonnes), and consisted of 51,630 tonnes (2015: 49,045 tonnes) from
our water products and 60,456 tonnes (2015: 62,467 tonnes) from our beer
products; the sales volume of water products increased by 5% in comparison
with that of 2015, and the sales volume of beer products decreased by 3% in

comparison with that of 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE

As the Group continued to launch new products during the past two vyears,
the average selling price fluctuated along with the change of products mix. The
average selling price of our water products decreased by 3% from RMB7,927
per tonne in 2015 to RMB7,657 per tonne in 2016. However, the average selling
price of 5100 Glacial Water increased 15% in the same period from RMB7,928
to RMB9,114. The average selling price of our beer products increased by 1%
from RMB6,272 per tonne in 2015 to RMB6,346 per tonne in 2016.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

In 2016, the gross profit margin of the water business segment is 69%, in
comparison with 74% in 2015, and such decrease was mainly attributable to the
change in mix of the sales of water products and the non-core business in the
water business segment, and the gross profit margin of water products remained
stable from 2015 to 2016. In 2016, the gross profit margin of the beer business
segment is 49%, in comparison with 46% in 2015, and such increase was mainly
due to the increase in the average selling price and decrease in average unit
costs of the beer products. The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2016
is 60%, which is in line with 2015.
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OTHER NET GAINS

Other net gains mainly included government grants and gain on disposal of

available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS").

The government grants increased by approximately 18% from RMB38 million in
2015 to RMB45 million in 2016. Such increase was in line with the revision to
government grants policies from 2015 to 2016 by the Tibet local government.
As our main production processes are carried out in Tibet, we enjoy relevant
government grants from time to time. The amount of grants we are entitled to
receive from the government of Tibet was mainly calculated with reference to
our fiscal contribution to the local economic development as a major tax payer
and employer in Tibet. Grants from the government are recognized where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all associated conditions. According to the newly updated and issued
policies enforced by the Tibet government in 2016, we enjoyed the government

grants in 2016 and will continue to enjoy them in future.

In 2016, gain on disposal of AFS increased by approximately 43% from RMB7
million in 2015 to RMBI0 million, as more available-for-sale structured financial

products were bought and disposed in 2016.
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SHARE OF POST-TAX PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

The share of post-tax profits of associates mainly included the share of post-
tax profit of Highland Natural Water whose ultimate controlling shareholder
is Sinopec. In September 2016, the Group acquired further 7% equity interests
of Highland Natural Water from its other shareholders thereby increasing the
Group's ownership in Highland Natural Water to 40%. In 2016, the Group's 40%
equity interests in Highland Natural Water has generated a share of the post-
tax profits of an associate at the amount of RMB29 million. The sales volume
and revenue in respect of Highland Natural Water in 2016 were approximately
180,827 tonnes and RMB472 million, respectively, representing an increase of
75% and 59%, respectively, compared to those in 2015. Such increase was a
result of Highland Natural Water's major water products, Easy Joys Zhuoma
Spring, being merchandised at more Easy Joy convenience stores at Sinopec gas

stations throughout China and its increase in popularity at those stores.

FINANCE NET COSTS

In 2016, the Group incurred finance costs of RMB40 million and gained finance
income of RMB2I million. Compared to 2015, finance costs in 2016 increased
by RMB20 million mainly due to the decrease of RMB6 million in interest costs
on borrowings from government and banks, together with an increase of RMBI6
million in interest costs on convertible bond, and the fair value loss of RMB8
million, which represented the difference in fair values on the convertible bond

between the commitment date and the issuance date and was a one-off loss with
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no cash implication for the year. Finance income increased by RMBI | million

mainly due to the increase in interest-bearing loans to third parties.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense decreased by RMBIO million or 19% from RMB52
million in 2015 to RMB42 million in 2016. The effective tax rate in 2016 and
in 2015 was 10% and 14%, respectively. Although the profit before income tax
increased, the decrease in effective tax rate resulted in the decrease in income
tax expense. The decrease in effective tax rate was mainly attributable to the
decrease of withholding tax incurred from proposed distribution of profit from
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") subsidiaries to their overseas holding

companies.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year increased by RMB36 million or 1% from RMB323 million
in 2015 to RMB359 million in 2016. On operational level, the result of 2016 has
improved with an increase in operating profit of RMB30 million mainly resulting
from the increase in revenue as mentioned above. Besides, the improved result
was also attributable to an increase in the share of post-tax profits of associates

of RMB6 million, and a decrease in income tax expense of RMBI10 million.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by RMB3I million or
['19% from RMB277 million in 2015 to RMB308 million in 2016, which increased

in line with the increase in profit for the year as mentioned above.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016, investment in associates of the Group amounted to
RMB1,308 million, compared to RMBI,063 million as at 31 December 2015. In
September 2016, the Group acquired 7% of the share capital of Highland Natural
Water for a cash consideration of RMB210 million; and in January 2016, the
Group acquired 2% of the share capital of Beijing GT Express Limited (Jt R E
MEMBM AR, "GT Express’) for a cash consideration of RMB8 million. The
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increase in investment in associates of RMB245 million was mainly attributable
to the above two investments. Further details of the investment in associates of
the Group are set out in Note |2 to the consolidated financial statements of this

Annual Report.

As at 31 December 2016, net trade receivables of the Group amounted to
RMB194 million compared to RMB205 million as at 31 December 2015. Among
the net trade receivables of RMBI94 million, there was a decrease in the
accumulated amount due from a customer of the Group from RMBI54 million
as at 3| December 2015 to RMB37 million as at 31 December 2016. As at 3|
December 2016, trade receivables due from such customer included RMB35
million aged over | year but within 2 years, and RMB2 million aged within | year,
of which RMB28 million had been further collected before 24 March 2017,
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In view of the decrease in the trade receivables of the Group from such
customer in the proportion of the total trade receivables of the Group, and
taking into account the history of business dealings and the strategic business
relationship with such customer, the Group considers that there is no objective
evidence of an impairment loss for the trade receivables due from such customer.
The Group also expects to receive further sums of moneys from such customer
before the end of December 2017 as settlement of its trade receivables. There
has never been any write-off on the trade receivables due from such customer in

the past.

Besides, the Group continuously develops strategic cooperation partnerships and
retail distributorships. As at 31 December 2016, net trade receivables (excluding
the above mentioned customer) due from third party distributors amounted to
RMB104 million (of which RMB85 million had been further collected before 24
March 2017), and trade receivables due from associates amounted to RMB53
million, which increased in comparison with those as at 31 December 2015,
offsetting the impact of the decrease in trade receivables due from a single
customer as mentioned above. The Group maintains regular contact with our
major debtors through meetings and telephone conversations to understand the
status of their operations, their continuing business needs and ways in which
the Group can improve its services. During such meetings and conversations,
the Group is not aware of any material circumstances indicating any problems
in recovering its trade receivables from its major debtors. In 2016, the Group
recognized provision for impairment loss of trade receivables of RMB2 million
(2015 nil).

As at 31 December 2016, prepayments (including current and non-current) of
the Group increased to RMB256 million from RMB28 million as at 31 December
2015. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase of RMB213 million of
prepayments made for purchase of raw materials, services and equipment and an

increase of RMBI7 million of prepayment made for investment in a third party.

As at 3| December 2016, other receivables and other assets (including current
and non-current) of the Group amounted to RMB250 million compared to
RMB88 million as at 31 December 2015. The amounts due from third parties
increased by RMB94 million, and the amounts due from an associate increased
by RMB34 million, and government grant receivable increased by RMB3[ million,
mainly leading to an overall increase in the total amount of other receivables and

other assets.
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As at 31 December 2016, AFS of the Group increased by RMB 186 million which

were undue structured financial products.

As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents of the Group increased by
RMB414 million, which was mainly attributable to the cash inflows from operating
activities of RMB215 million, cash outflows for investing activities of RMB608
million, and cash inflows from financing activities of RMB80I million. The cash
outflows for investing activities of RMB608 million in 2016 mainly included
purchase of property, plant and equipment (“"PP&E") of RMB93 million, net cash
outflows for purchases and disposal of AFS of RMBI72 million, net cash outflows
for loan granted to and received from third parties of RMB73 million, net cash
outflows for amounts received from and paid to third parties and a related party
of RMB39 million, prepayment for investment in a third party of RMBI7 million
and investments in associates of RMB218 million. The cash inflows from financing
activities of RMB80I million in 2016 mainly included net cash inflows from bank
borrowings of RMB435 million and net cash inflows from issue of convertible
bond of RMB454 million, offsetted by dividends paid to shareholders of RMB88
million.

As at 31 December 2016, deferred income tax liabilities of the Group decreased
by RMB I8 million, which was mainly attributable to the settlement of withholding
tax for dividend declared.

The Group issued 6.0% convertible bond due 2019 at an aggregate principal
amount of HKD525 million on 24 June 2016. The convertible bond can be
converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the bondholder's option at a
price of HKD3.50 per share. As at 3| December 2016, the amortized remaining
balances of the liability component of the convertible bond of the Group was
RMB458 million. Further details of the convertible bond are set out in Note 28

to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

As at 3|1 December 2016, deferred revenue and advances received from
customers (current) of the Group decreased by RMB30 million, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in deferred revenue of RMBI9 million relating to
sales of Water Cards and decrease in advances received from customers of
RMBI 1 million.
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As at 31 December 2016, accrual and other payables of the Group decreased by
RMBI | million, which was mainly attributable to the increase in welfare payables
of RMB5 million, increase in payables for value added tax and other taxes of
RMB3 million, and decrease in payables for purchase of equipment of RMBI9

million.

As at 31 December 2016, non-current bank borrowings of the Group increased
by RMBI90 million, and the current bank borrowings of the Group increased
by RMB256 million, which was mainly attributable to bank borrowings received
amounting to RMB556 million, and repayments of bank borrowings amounting
to RMBI 10 million in 2016. Further details of the bank borrowings are set out in
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of employees of the Group was
approximately 439 compared to 507 as at 3| December 2015. Relevant staff
cost was RMB73 million in 2016, compared to RMB77 million in 2015. The
decrease in staff cost was mainly attributable to the decrease in the number of
employees as the Group continued to optimize the human resources structure
during 2016. The Group's remuneration policies are formulated according to
the duty, experience, ability and performance of individual employees and
are reviewed annually. In addition to basic salary, employees are entitled to
other benefits including social insurance contribution, employee provident fund

schemes and discretionary incentive.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated as borrowings (including borrowings and
convertible bond) divided by total capital. The total capital is calculated as
“equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus borrowings (including
borrowings and convertible bond). As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015, the gearing ratios of the Group were 24.01 % and 5.89%, respectively.
The increase in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in bank
borrowings and liability component of convertible bond as at 31 December
2016.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 16 December 2015, the Company granted share options to China
Distribution and Logistics Company Ltd (“China Distribution”). Under the
agreement, China Distribution has the right to subscribe up to 25,200,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a price of HKD3.00 per share within 10
years from | January 2016, if certain performance conditions are met by China
Distribution during the vesting period from | January 2016 to 31 December
2018. Further details of the grant of share options are set out in Note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

MERGER AND ACQUISITION

In January 2016, the Group acquired 2% of the share capital of GT Express for
a cash consideration of RMB8 million. In September 2016, the Group acquired
7% of the share capital of Highland Natural Water for a cash consideration of
RMB210 million. Further details of the two acquisitions are set out in Note 12 to

the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

In 2016, the Group acquired PP&E of approximately RMBI8 million (in 2015:
approximately RMB48 million). Regarding the future development and outlook
of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Outlook” in this "MD&A"

section.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 3| December 2016, the Group committed to purchase PP&E of
approximately RMBI13 million (31 December 2015: nil), and equity investment
of RMB54 million (31 December 2015: nil). Regarding the future development
and outlook of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Outlook” in this
"MD&A" section.
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CHARGES

As at 31 December 2016, a bank loan of RMB200 million of the Group was
secured by its factory plant with net book value of RMB72 million and land use
rights with net book value of RMB30 million; and a bank loan of RMB66 million
of the Group was secured by its factory plant with net book value of RMB35
million and land use rights with net book value of RMBI million. The convertible
bond is secured by the entire issued shares of Wealth Keeper Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. As at 3| December 2015, the Group did not

have any asset charges.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 10 January 2017, the controlling shareholder of the Company entered into
agreements with three independent investors to sell approximately 1.83%, 3.50%
and 4.67% of the total issued share capital of the Company, respectively, with
selling price of HKD3.50 per share. Further details of the transactions are set out

in the Company's announcement dated 10 January 2017.

On I'l January 2017, the controlling shareholder of the Company entered into an
agreement with an independent investor, Khorgos Tianshan No.| (EfEHX
Il —9%%) to sell 18% of the total issued share capital of the Company with selling
price of HKD3.50 per share. Further details of the transactions are set out in the

Company's announcement dated || January 2017.

Upon completion of the above-mentioned transactions, Khorgos Tianshan No.|

will become the single largest shareholder of the Company.
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CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided a financial guarantee to an associate amounting to RMB260
million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB260 million). The
guarantee is provided for bank borrowings obtained by the associate with the
remaining amounts of RMB240 million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December
2015: RMB240 million), the period of the guarantee is from 20 July 2015 to 20
July 2017.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group adopts a conservative approach to cash management and risk control.
The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of its business transactions
denominated in RMB. However, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from its cash exchange transactions, which are primarily denominated in
HKD. To mitigate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations, the Group continually
assesses and monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risk. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, management did not consider it necessary to enter
into any hedging transactions in order to reduce the exposure to foreign
exchange risk, because the exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities

subject to foreign exchange risk, is not significant.

VALUATION OF PROPERTIES

For the purpose of listing of the Company's shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 30 June 2011, a valuation was conducted on the property
interests held by the Group. However, those property interests were still carried
at historical costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, on the

Group's financial statements.

With reference to the property valuation set out in Note 4 of Appendix
II-A of the Company's prospectus dated 20 June 2011, a revaluation surplus
of approximately RMB3,947,000 was identified in respect of the property
interests of the Group as at 31 March 201 1. If the property of the Group were
stated at that valuation, the depreciation charge per annum would increase by
approximately RMB130,000.
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PRODUCTION CAPACITY

The annual water production capacity and annual beer production capacity
for the year ended 3| December 2016 are approximately 300,000 tonnes
and 200,000 tonnes, respectively (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
approximately 238,000 tonnes and 200,000 tonnes, respectively), and the
Group will assess the production capacity periodically and consider to increase

production capacity to meet the demands of future development.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted internal control measures to monitor the continuous
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, the “SFO"), the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, (the “Listing Rules™) and other rules and regulations implemented in
relevant jurisdictions. Also, as the Group's major subsidiaries are located in PRC,
relevant regulatory requirements on the Group include PRC government policies
and regulations towards the mineral water industry, PRC laws and regulations on
environmental protection, PRC laws on regulation of manufacture and sales of
general food products, PRC taxes, regulation of foreign currency exchange and
dividend distribution, and other relevant PRC laws and regulations. During the
financial year ended 31 December 2016, as far as the Board is aware, the Group
has complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

The Group continues its commitment to comply with the relevant laws and

regulations.

ENVIROMENTAL PROTECTION

In order to maintain the quality and safety of our products, we have established
a "water protection zone" of 60 square kilometers around our water source.
No human activities are allowed in the most restricted zone and the spring
source has been secured in a fully enclosed facility to prevent any potential

contamination.
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Our production facility generates and/or discharges wastes mainly include waste
water, plastics, papers or air pollutants during the production activities. We
consider the protection of the environment to be of utmost importance and
have implemented procedures for waste storage, handling and/or disposal. The
Group aims to minimise the impact of our activities on the environment and
requires our staff to follow the same principle. We adhere to the principles of
low carbon emission, waste and emission reduction, energy and cost saving and

an overall environmentally friendly approach in the way we operate.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Board believes in being people-oriented. The employees of the Group
are one of the most important assets of the Group and their contribution and
support are highly valued. The Group ensures staff are reasonably remunerated
with regular reviews on compensations and benefits policies in accordance with
the industry benchmark as well as the individual performance of the employees.
Other fringe benefits, training, employee provident fund and share options, if
applicable, are provided by the Group to solicit/retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional and united staff and management team that can bring

the Group to higher levels of achievements.

The Group seeks to maintain good relationship with its customers. The Group
maintains an after-sales call center to serve the end customers of our products,
and the sales personnel make regular visits and/or phone calls to the regular
distributors and sales outlets in the market. If there is any complaint from
customers, it will be reported to the management and immediate remedial action
will be taken. Thereafter, the cause of such complaint will be studied, analysed

and evaluated, and recommendations will be made for future improvement,
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The Group also seeks to maintain good relationship with its suppliers. During the

year, there was no dispute in debts or unsettled debts. In addition, whenever the

Group places orders, our suppliers are willing to accept our orders.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including some

which are specific to the Group or the industry in which the Group operates as

well as others that are common to most businesses. The Board has established a

procedure to ensure that significant risks which may adversely affect the Group's

performance and ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may

present positive opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored and managed

on a continuous basis.

Risks relating to our industry

The Group could be affected by change in consumer preferences,
perception and spending patterns relating to bottled water and beer,
particularly premium bottled water and premium beer. The growth in
demand for bottled water products and beer products in the PRC has
been driven in part by the overall growth in the PRC economy and
disposable income of consumers. Any macroeconomic changes in the PRC
that adversely impact consumer consumption for the beverage products
could have a material adverse effect on our business and a decline in the

market share of our products.

The Group faces increasing competition from domestic and foreign
companies, which may affect our market share and profit margin. The
bottled water and beer industry in China is highly competitive, and we
expect competition to intensify. Our ability to compete is, to a significant
extent, dependent on our ability to distinguish our product from those
of our competitors by providing higher quality products and services
at reasonable prices that appeal to consumers’ tastes and preferences.
Some of our competitors may have longer operating histories, may have
substantially greater financial and other resources and may be better

established in certain markets.
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2.

Risks relating to our Business

Our reliance on limited water source represents a risk to our business
if the mineral content and quality of the spring water from that source
are adversely affected due to changes in the surrounding geological
environment or contamination of the water source. In order to maintain
the quality and safety of our products, we have established a “water
protection zone" of 60 square kilometers around our water source and

also adhere to a strict quality control system over all our operations.

As a premium products provider, we rely heavily on the product’s brand
names and our reputation to generate sales. Any event that generates
negative publicity for us could have an adverse effect on the product's
brand names and our reputation, which in turn would affect our ability to

market and sell our products.

Our water products are bottled at water sources in Tibet, and our
beer products are also manufactured in Tibet. Our business may be
interrupted or otherwise affected if relevant transportation is affected,
and thus resulting in negative impact on our ability to transport adequate
raw materials to our production facilities and the transportation of our

products from Tibet.

Financial risks

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. Details are

set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 30 June 2011 with net proceeds from the global offering of approximately
HKD1,472 million (including proceeds from the exercise of over-allotment option
and after deducting underwriting commissions and related expenses). On 10
April 2013, the Company resolved to change the usage of the net proceeds from
the global offering. Please refer to the Company's announcement dated 10 April
2013 for details. The revised usage of the net proceeds has been allocated and

has been partially utilized in the following manner:

REZRBEMEGNAERRFEAR
ARBABROR-E——FNA=TREEX
FRERLED - RAEEREENREFEFR
R4 BERE(BRRITREBHEERER
BMGEHAEMERER) R-T—=
FOA+H  ARRERBERZIREEM
BHERE  FEFLHARAR-F—
FOA+BEZAE - ERRNAERIEFRE
BEABIEATRE

As at 31
December 2016
Utilized net

As at 31
December 2016
Unutilized net

proceeds

Revised usage of

net proceeds
EXEH
8RR E
RERAR
HKD'Million
BEAT

RIBFE
HKD'Million
BEATL

HIEFE
HKD'Million
BEABT

FRYERSHIEME I

Expand our production capacity

by constructing additional facilities and BERIEER
purchasing additional production equipment AR E B 133 133 —
Expand our distribution network and YRR S48 )2
towards promotional activities EEHEREE 206 20 186
Mergers and acquisitions that complement RER A RMRAE
our existing business B S O R 1,092 1,092 —
Working capital and other general RIESEER ® KHEAM
corporate purpose —REERR 41 4| —
1,472 1,286 186

In 2016, the Group has utilized net proceeds amounting to HKD78 million and
HKD3 million (i) for expanding our production capacity; and (ii) for expanding
our distribution network and towards promotional activities, respectively. The

remaining net proceeds were deposited in reputable financial institutions.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been declared by the Company in respect of 2016 (for the year
ended 3| December 2015: HKD4 cents per share).

OUTLOOK

Consumer awareness and recognition of the Group's high quality products are

expected to further increase as a result of the Group's activities.

The Group will continue its diversification strategy on product portfolio, market-
oriented business strategy, internationalization strategy and further enhance
strategic channel cooperation in future along with continued brand development

through a range of marketing activities.

During the past two years, the Group launched its premium version of 5100
Glacial Water named as “Diamond Series” product, 10L/12L “5100 Family Soft
Barreled Water" and medium priced bottled water products under the brand of
“Gesang Spring”. The new products will be further promoted in 2017, and the

Group will also continue to develop new products in future.

The Group will also continue to expand its retail network, and target to develop
key channels not only in traditional retail channel but also in hotels, cinemas,
airports, e-commerce platforms, restaurants and healthcare and entertainment
venues. Family market and markets beyond the mainland China were identified by
the Group as two potential markets, in which the Group will devote resources

to develop.

During the past year, the Group has maintained and developed strategic
partnerships for the purpose of both sales and marketing. In order to develop
the sales of our water products, we will continue to allocate resources to our
strategic airline partners to further increase our market share in the airline
beverage sector. We will further explore opportunities with CRE to promote our
products in railway channels; with Sinopec and PetroChina to cover more petrol
stations; with Country Garden to penetrate our supplies in more communities
and with Moutai Group and Zhongshang Huimin to promote our “5100 Family
Soft Barreled Water” and “Gesang Spring”.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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In January 2017, an independent investor, Khorgos Tianshan No.| has agreed
to buy 8% of the total issued share capital of the Company from the existing
controlling shareholder of the Company. After completion of the transaction,
Khorgos Tianshan No.| will be our single largest shareholder and it has declared
that it will make good use of its advantages and resources, support the Group's
current management team, expand the Group's market share, and strengthen the
Group's competitiveness, in order to bring more benefits to the shareholders of
the Company and the local economy in both Tibet and Xinjiang Autonomous

Region.

While continuing to implement the above mentioned strategies and actively
strengthen the integration of our existing resources in both our water business
segment and beer business segment, and to generate further synergy between
the water business and the beer business, the Group will continue to seek new
projects with a business presence in the Chinese beverage industry that focuses
on the Group's products’ Tibet origins, leading to the diversification of our

business and products.

In recognition of the importance of the ongoing projects, the Group will
continue to give high priority to strengthen its workforce both qualitatively and

quantitatively.

The Group expects strong competition to continue and a challenging economic

environment, but will continue to focus on improving our core business.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Lin, aged 51, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of our Company and was appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Mr. Fu has
over 23 years of experience in business and capital operation and is responsible
for the overall management, business and strategic planning of our Group. Mr.
Fu graduated from Peking University (LR AZ) with a bachelor degree in
Economics. Mr. Fu studied at the Graduates School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences (FEIH&RIEFT) and was awarded with a master degree in
Economics; Mr. Fu also attended an advanced management program at Harvard

Business School, which focused on skills in leading an organization.

Mr. YUE Zhiqiang, aged 52, is an executive Director of our Company and
was appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Mr. Yue has over 29 years of
experience in mechanical engineering and manufacturing plant operation, and
is the general manager of our subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water
Co. Ltd. Mr. Yue studied at Shandong University of Technology (LW T K&)
(now combined into Shandong University (I4ZAX£%)) in Machinery Production
and obtained a bachelor degree. Mr. Yue was appointed as the director of Tiandi
Green on 25 December 2012.

Mr. LIU Chen, aged 33, is an executive Director and authorized representative
of our Company and was appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Liu gained experience in the areas of law and accounting.
Mr. Liu graduated from York University, Canada, with a bachelor of arts degree.
Mr. Liu also studied full-time at McMaster University, Canada, and obtained a

master degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. WONG Hak Kun, aged 61, is an executive Director of our Company and
was appointed to the Board on 8 December 2014. He worked for Carlsberg
Brewery prior to joining the Company. He was the Chairman of Carlsberg China
from September 2011 to March 2014. He served as the chief executive officer
of Carlsberg Greater China from March 2007 to September 2011, and as the
deputy managing director of Carlsberg China from January 2006 to February
2007. During the period between 2002 and 2006, in his capacity of business
development director of Carlsberg China, he led the merger and acquisition team
in expanding the company's production bases in the PRC. Mr. Wong has more
than 33 years of working experience in the fast-moving consumer goods industry,
of which more than 28 years were in the China beverage market. During the said
period, he held various senior management positions in top international beer

companies including Carlsberg and Bass Brewers.

Mr. Wong graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now Hong Kong Baptist
University) in 1978 with a Diploma in Business Management and received a
Master of Business Administration degree (full time) from Bath University, United
Kingdom in 2001.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. JIANG Xiaohong, aged 59, is a non-executive Director of our Company and
was appointed to the Board on | March 2011. Ms. Jiang is also the vice general
manager of our subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co. Ltd, and
is responsible for the operation, quality control, equipment and production site
management. She has over 29 vyears of experience in operational management.
She graduated from Xinjiang Vocational University (¥7588 T AZ) with a
diploma in Economic Management, then from Jiangnan University (JTFAZ)
(formerly known as Wuxi University of Light Industry (78 T AE) with a
diploma of Brewery Engineering, and from Xinjiang University (RTi8AZ) with
diploma of Analytical Chemistry.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN, aged 63, joined our Group and was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He
is the chairman of the nomination committee and also a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of our Company. Mr. Madsen was

appointed as chairman of the Board on 7 July 2015.
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Mr. Madsen worked with the Carlsberg A/S Group for over 22 years. He held
the positions as the vice president responsible for overseas investments and
markets, general manager and managing director of Carlsberg Brewery Hong
Kong Ltd and Chief Operating Officer of Carlsberg Asia Pte Ltd. Mr. Madsen
was the senior vice president of Carlsberg Breweries A/S with responsibility for
Asia, among other markets. Mr. Madsen was during his tenure as the said senior
president also a non-executive chairman, non-executive vice chairman or non-
executive director in a number of Carlsberg's subsidiaries in Asia. Mr. Madsen
obtained a master degree in Law from Copenhagen University, Denmark and

later studied Scottish/English Law at the University of Edinburgh, Scotland.

Mr. Madsen currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of
D&O Green Technologies Berhad (stock code: 7204) and Mega First Corporation
Berhad (stock code: 3069), both are companies listed on the Main Board of

Bursa Malaysia.

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai, aged 62, joined our Group and was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He
is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a member of the audit

committee and nomination committee of our Company.

Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ermnst & Young for many years and held key
leadership positions in the development of such firm in China. Mr. Lee is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Chartered Accountants, Australia and New Zealand, the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Lee was
appointed as a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Hunan Province (FEIHE BIHZ ) in China since 2007. Mr. Lee received
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Studies from Kingston University (formerly
known as Kingston Polytechnic) in London and further obtained his postgraduate

diploma in Business from Curtin University of Technology in Australia.
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Mr. Lee currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the

following companies listed in Hong Kong and China:

Name of Listed Company

Bl NG R

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Stock Code
v

Place of Listing

LR

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 951 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
HBEE N ERER DR BB ER
China Rundong Auto Group Limited 1365 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(formerly known as China Greenland
Rundong Auto Group Limited)
FEBERAEEERRAAF BB ER
(A B BRI IEEBARAF)
China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd. L1117 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RERRBERERER QA BB ER
GCL New Energy Holdings Limited 451 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
HEHRERERAR LA BB ER
GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited 493 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ExERERARAR BB ER
NVC Lighting Holding Limited 2222 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ELRAERAR DA BB ER
West China Cement Limited 2233 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
REITEORAR AR BB ER
WH Group Limited 288 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
EMNEBRER AR BBB P ER
Yashili International Holdings Ltd 1230 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
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Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI, aged 49, joined our Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 2011. He is
the chairman of the audit committee and also a member of the remuneration

committee, nomination committee and risk management committee of our

[mo

Company.

\
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Mr. Wei is currently a managing partner of a corporate finance advisory firm. Mr.
Wei served as chief financial officer from December 2007 to September 2013 of
IFM Investments Limited which is a real estate services company headquartered
in Beijing. From 2006 to 2007, Mr. Wei served as the chief financial officer of a
Chinese solar company listed on Nasdag. From 1999 to 2005, Mr. Wei worked
in the internal audit and risk management functions with Asia Pacific regional
or global coverage for multinational companies including LG Philips Displays
International Ltd. (2003 to 2005) headquartered in Hong Kong. From 1991 to
1999, Mr. Wei worked with KPMG LLP and Deloitte Touche LLP in various audit
and consulting roles between United States of America and China. Mr. Wei
graduated from Central Washington University in 1991, where he received his
bachelor's degree (cum laude) with a double major in accounting and business
administration. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountant.

Mr. Wei currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Wisdom Sports Group (stock code: 1661) and Nexteer Automotive Group
Limited (stock code: 1316), both companies are listed on the Main Board of the

Stock Exchange.

So far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors have any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with

each other.
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FREBHE

The Board now presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's

annual report for the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices to enhance Shareholders’ value and safeguard Shareholders’
interests. Accordingly, the Board has considered carefully the requirements of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules and as described below, has taken actions to further enhance

corporate transparency and accountability.

The Board believes good corporate governance is one of the critical factors for
achieving sustainable long-term success. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasize on the importance of a quality Board and its
accountability to Shareholders. The Board regularly reviews the corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the principles and code
provisions as set out from time to time in the CG Code and strive to maintain

the long-term healthy development of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board leads and supervises the overall direction and development of the
Group's business and affairs, with the objective of enhancing Shareholders’
value including making and approving the Company's strategic implementation,
considering substantial investments, reviewing the Group's financial performance
and developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on corporate
governance. The Directors are responsible for, and has also delegated to the
chief executive officer the authority and responsibility to oversee the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established
four Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees various

responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of references.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises of eight Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. The Board has a
balance of appropriate skill, experience and diversity of perspectives to meet the

requirements of the Group's business.

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YUE Zhigiang

Mr. LIU Chen

Mr. WONG Hak Kun

Non-executive Director
Ms. JIANG Xiaohong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI

There are four Board committees in the Company. The table below provides the

constituents of each of the committees.
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EREES FMEES REZEEe EMEEZSSE

Mr. FU Lin RRSEE — Member Member Chairman
Mr. LIU Chen ARKE — — — Member
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN BEMExRE Member Member Chairman —
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai THEEEE Member Chairman Member —
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI BIRK ST & Chairman Member Member Member
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The list of Directors and their role and function is available at the Company's
and the Stock Exchange's websites. Their profiles are set out in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” which is in this Annual

Report on pages 45 to 49.

During the year, the Company had eight Directors, of which three were
independent non-executive Directors, which is in compliance with the

requirements under Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company are separate and are assumed by Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen and Mr.
Fu Lin, respectively. The Chairman’s primary responsibilities include deciding on
the meeting schedule and agenda, formulating Board policies, ensuring Board
effectiveness, promoting the Company and upholding the Company's corporate
governance standards. The Chief Executive has delegated authority from, and
is responsible to, the Board for managing the Group's business, including the

implementation of the strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Operation of the Board

All the executive Directors are responsible for dealing with the business of the
Group in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not
limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and

material matters of the Group.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the
Group, including convening Shareholders’ meetings, reporting their work in the
Shareholders’ meeting, implementing the Shareholders’ resolutions, determining
the Group's business plans and strategies, formulating the Group's annual budget
and final accounts, formulating proposals for dividend and bonus distribution,
and determining duties as conferred to it by the Articles of Association of the
Company. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board meets and communicates

regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.
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The Board meets regularly to review financial statements, material investments
in new projects, dividend policy, major financings, treasury policies and changes
in accounting policies. All Directors have access to Board papers and related
materials which are provided in a timely manner. Directors have access to the
advice and services provided by the company secretary of the Company (the
"Company Secretary”) with a view to ensure that the procedures applicable to
Board meetings, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed. Draft and
final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings,
drafted in sufficient detail by the secretary of the meetings, would be circulated
to the Directors for their comments and record. Originals of such minutes, being
kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any time upon a

reasonable notice period given by any Director.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board,
the matters of which the Board determines to be material, the relevant Director
will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or
any of his/her associates have a material interest and that he/she shall not be

counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting.

Under the respective appointment letters, all the current non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a period of three
years from | March 2017 unless terminated in accordance with the terms of
the appointment letters. Their appointment may be terminated either by the
Company or by the Director by giving three months” written notice to the other
party. All the current non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the coming
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent

non-executive Directors independent.
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At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once

every three years.

The Board believes that the balance between executive and non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and balances
that safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group. The non-
executive Directors provide the Group with diversified knowledge, expertise and
experience. Their views and participation in Board and committee meetings bring
independent judgement and advice on issues relating to the Group's strategies,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process, and ensure that the
interests of all Shareholders are taken into account. Two of the independent
non-executive Directors possess the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise, which exceeds the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The opinions raised by the independent
non-executive Directors in Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good

corporate governance practices.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director will receive a
comprehensive induction package and training provided by the Company's legal
advisor, covering business operations, policy and procedures of the Company as
well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing

Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016

:t_/'\

EBERRBFAE L - MES
(% A%m%—%h@'MMF&LE$
PRE=EA—MABORRRRE  EBLE
PVARLE=FRRRBEFAE LRER
=R

+I+H+\

EZOHENTESIRTESAA LI
PIeEBEREE  YRDBEFSHEER - AR
BRRRAEEZFE - FMTEERLE

EERZTINERE  EXMARER - K
TREMBERANEBL2HEEZERNZEEE

FERE - RR NREELERRERE
EELARERERBUZHAERER  #

MERABBR MBI ESER - =
LRUFNTEFABEEZTESTERKL
MEMGEEIRANE  SRBHT LHA
BIFTAREMER - BUFNITEFAERS
SRLRNERAPERRINERERS
e

EEV ABREREXRERE

BUHNEZEZEEZNAEZEREWE —
DEEZ ABEREBARRERZBERRER
MR BERERRRZFKBEE  HEK
PEFARERESRE KR EEREER
- DERESEHTHER EMRARE
tiREERE T EE



The Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company and the Company
Secretary have been encouraging the Directors and other management to enroll
in a wide range of professional development courses and seminars relating to
the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/laws and corporate governance practices
organized by professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong
Kong so that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant

knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to develop
and refresh their professional skills. The Company Secretary also coordinates,
organises and arranges seminars on the latest development of applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the Directors to assist them in discharging their duties.
During the year, seminar materials, articles and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
have been provided to Directors. An in-house seminar has been conducted by
our independent external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, covering the topic
of "New Auditor Reporting Standards".

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group's
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.
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According to the information provided by Directors and records maintained by
the Company, the Directors have each received training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with
the requirement of the CG Code on continuous professional development during

the year:

REEERENERNARAFE 2R
REECEELRTRENSEZRER A
o EERFARRBHARLTARES
ZAE - BERBEZE

Types of training
EE k]

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. FU Lin NEiFis

Mr. YUE Zhigiang EERLE

Mr. LIU Chen BIREE

Mr. WONG Hak Kun ITrELE
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. JIANG Xiaohong ZHRIT L+
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN BREMEEE

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FAREEE

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI B

A attending in-house training and/or seminars and/or conferences and/or forums
B: reading seminar handouts, newspapers, journals, the Group's news, industry news and

updates relating to the ongoing compliance obligations, corporate governance and other

related topics, etc

Delegation by the Board

There is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board for
its consideration and delegation. The Board has given clear directions to
management as to matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions

can be made on behalf of the Company.

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties and to facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated by the Board to
the Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee"), Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company which were established with written terms of
references in compliance with the Listing Rules. The adopted terms of references
comply with the code provisions as set out from time to time in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. During the year, the Board have also set up a Risk Management
Committee (the “Risk Management Committee”) for the main purpose of
formulating policies and making recommendations to improve the Company's

internal control and risk management systems.
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Each board committee is required to report to the Board on its decisions and
recommendations, where appropriate. Each board committee is also provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice at the Company's expense according to the Company's

policy, if necessary.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee meets at least twice per annum. Its key responsibilities

include:

a)  to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and where applicable, to
handle any questions relating to the resignation or dismissal of the external

auditor;

b)  to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard;

c)  to monitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company and the
Company's annual report, interim report and related financial results (if
prepared for publication), and to review significant financial reporting

judgments contained in them; and

d)  to review the Company's financial control, internal control and risk

management system.

All the three Audit Committee members are independent non-executive
Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the relevant financial
management expertise and experience. The committee members, together with
our external auditor, met three times during 2016 and discharged their principal

responsibilities by:

a)  reviewing the interim results and final results of the Group and the
relevant financial statements and reports and significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them prior to the approval by the Board and
reviewing the external auditor's report and findings relating to the work

that has been performed;
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b)  reviewing the external auditor's audit plan and terms of engagement for

the work performed;

c)  reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, and

the non-audit service fee payable to the external auditor; and

d)  reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
including financial control, operational control, compliance control and risk

management.

Nomination Committee

[ts key responsibilities include:

a)  to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed

changes;

b)  to recommend to the Board on matters relating to selection, appointment

or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

c)  to ensure sufficient biographical details of the nominated candidates are
provided to the Board and Shareholders (when necessary) for them to

make decisions regarding selection of Board members; and

d)  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

All Board appointment will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity of the Board. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. Accordingly, selection
of candidates to the Board will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service,
having due regard to the Company's own business model and specific needs
from time to time. Taking into account the Company's corporate strategy and
the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future,
the Nomination Committee is comfortable with the existing structure, size,

composition and diversity of the Board.
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One meeting has been held by the Nomination Committee during 2016 and the

following work has been satisfactorily concluded:

a)

b)

reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; and

assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

[ts key responsibilities include:

3)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's overall policy
and structure on remuneration of Directors and senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
such remuneration policy;

review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management for any loss of office or appointment to ensure
that such compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; and

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to

time.

During 2016, the Remuneration Committee has met two times and considered

and reviewed the existing remuneration package of all the Directors and senior

management. It is considered that the existing terms of remuneration of the

Directors and senior management are fair and reasonable.

Risk Management Committee

[ts key responsibilities include:

a)

to review and assess the effectiveness of the Company's risk management
systems, and propose changes thereto, to identify, measure, manage and/or

control risks;

to discuss the risk management system with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to maintain an effective risk
management system,

to consider major investigation findings on risk management matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management'’s response

to these findings; and
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d) to formulate policies and make recommendations to improve the

Company's internal control and risk management systems.

During 2016, the Risk Management Committee has met once to consider and
review the existing internal control system. Management's recommendations
on financial management and production function were discussed, considered
and adopted to improve the effectiveness of the internal control and risk

management systems.

The composition of the Board and the Board members' respective attendance
in Board meetings, general meeting, the Audit Committee meetings, the
Remuneration Committee meetings, the Nomination Committee meeting and the
Risk Management Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2016

were as follows:

d  HEBRRRABEARDAAIBELER
RRERRZSIELEE -

E-ZE—RFA RREEZEECET—
RE#E NEBRRFRITHOAMEZ R
B EREENBERMEEEFETANE
& DT BRI - (Em R AR
ERKEREEZRGNAERIL -

BE_T-—RFT_A=+t—HILFE &
FENERRNEEENEFEEE - BR
Ag BRZESE FHZEeE RA
ZESEHNAREEZESEEMNHER
mr

No. of meetings attended/held

Bt/ ET8EHE

General

Risk
Management

Audit Remuneration Nomination  Committee

meeting  Committee  Committee  Committee RRER

kRAE& BHZEE HFHZEE REZEE E31 -

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. FU Lin N iks 5/5 I/1
Mr. YUE Zhigiang EERtE 4/5 0/1
Mr. LIU Chen AREHE 5/5 /1
Mr. WONG Hak Kun IRHEE 5/5 /1
Non-executive Director FHTES

Ms. JIANG Xiaohong B+ 4/5 0/1
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES

Directors

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN ERIExE 5/5 I/1
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FRETE 5/5 /1
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI B A 4/5 0/1

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Company has held a meeting
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the executive
Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has undertaken and adopted the responsibility for performing the
corporate governance duties pursuant to the CG Code and is committed to
ensuring that an effective governance structure is in place to continuously review,
monitor and improve the corporate governance practices within the Group with

regard to the prevailing legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the policies and practices on the
Group's corporate governance, developed a code of conduct applicable to
the Directors and employees, monitored the Company's legal and regulatory
compliance, organised training and continuing professional development for
Directors and management and reviewed the Company's compliance with the
CG Code and the disclosures in this Annual Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge

of its corporate governance function.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system of the Group. Our internal control system includes a well-
defined management structure with limits of authority which is designed for the
achievement of business objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensuring proper maintenance of books and records for
the provision of reliable and timely financial information for internal use or
publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant legislations and regulations.
In addition, the Group has established risk management procedures to identify
and prioritise risks for the business to be addressed by management. During
the year ended 3| December 2016, the Board has supervised a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system and is satisfied with the scope of

review and the effectiveness of the system.

The systems of internal control are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
business risk; to help safeguard the Group's assets against fraud and other
irregularities; and to give reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
financial misstatement or loss. In addition, it should provide a basis for the
maintenance of proper and fair accounting records and assist in the compliance

with relevant rules and regulations.
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During the year, the Board worked with the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the independent external auditor to review all
material internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management function in respect of the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and is satisfied

that they were effective and in compliance with our policies.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The management team of the Company meets regularly to review and discuss
with the executive Directors on day-to-day operational matters, financial and
operating performance as well as to monitor and ensure that the management is

properly carrying out the directions and strategies pre-determined by the Board.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities

transactions.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the requirements set out in the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Specific employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information relating to the Group have been requested to
comply with the provisions of the Model Code. No incident of non-compliance

of specific employees has been noted by the Company.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping proper accounting
books and records and overseeing the preparation of accounts for each financial
year/period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group as at the end of the financial year/period and the profit and loss
for the year/period. The Directors have adopted applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards in all material respects, selected appropriate accounting
policies and then applied them consistently, and have made judgments and
estimates that they believe to be fair and reasonable. The Directors use a going

concern basis in preparing the accounts unless it is not applicable.
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The Board acknowledges that a clear, balanced and timely presentation of
financial information is crucial in maintaining the confidence of Shareholders in
the Company. Reasonable disclosure of the Company's financial position and
prospects are provided in the reports. Annual and interim results are published
within three and two months after the end of the relevant financial year/period,

respectively.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 80 to 88 of this Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for its Directors and officers covering the costs, losses, expenses and
liabilities arising from the performance of their duties. The insurance policy is
reviewed on an annual basis ensuring adequate covers on potential legal action
against its Directors and officers arising from the performance of their duties and
to comply with the requirement of the CG Code. During the year, no claim was

made against the Directors and officers of the Company.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for effective
communication with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the Board
Committees, or in his absence, fellow Directors and other management members

will be made available to answer questions at the general meetings.

Extensive information about the Group's activities is provided in this Annual
Report, the interim report and circulars which are sent to Shareholders in
a timely manner and are made available on the Company's website (www.
twrl115.net). Our website serves as a communication platform where company
information including corporate profile, corporate governance materials,
announcements, circulars, business news and financial reports are made available
to the public. All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company to understand the business of the Group from the

Directors and senior management in the general meeting.

The members of the Board will meet and communicate with Shareholders in the
coming AGM 2017 which will be held on Monday, 29 May 2017. The notice of
the AGM 2017 will be dispatched to all Shareholders not less than twenty clear
business days beforehand. At the AGM 2017, the Chairman of the Board will
demand for a poll and the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar will be

appointed as the scrutineer for the vote-taking.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by such Shareholders, provided that such Shareholders held at the
date of deposit of the written requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of deposit which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. If the Directors do not within twenty-one
days from the date of deposit of the requisition duly proceed to convene the
meeting, the Shareholders themselves may convene the general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as those meetings which may be convened
by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders as
a result of the failure of the Directors in convening the said meeting shall be

reimbursed to them by the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of
Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph. As regards nomination of a person as a Director,

please refer to the procedures available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by mail in writing to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 3401, 34th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there had been no change to the Company's constitutional

documents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Wai Kit was appointed on a full-time basis as the Company Secretary
and during the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Chow has taken not less
than 15 hours of appropriate professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the independence
of the external auditor to ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process of the financial statements in accordance with applicable standards.
Members of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is independent and recommended to the
Board to re-appoint it as the Company's external auditor at the AGM 2017. For
the year, the fees paid/payable to the Company's external auditor in respect of

audit and non-audit services provided to the Group are set out below:
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Audit services BZRHS 6,000 6,050
Non-audit services FERRE
Review and other reporting services 25 R EH A R AR TS — 400
6,000 6,450
COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION BI T mBRERE

Tibet Water Resources Limited, Maple Essence Investments Limited, True
Asset Holdings Limited and Mr. Wang Peter Jian (collectively the “Controlling
Shareholders™) have entered into a deed of non-competition undertaking dated
I4 June 2011 (the "NCU") in favour of the Company. The Company and its
Directors have made market enquiries and nothing has come to the attention
of the Company or its Directors that the Controlling Shareholders are engaging
in any business that may compete with that of the Group in contravention of
the terms of the NCU. The Company and its Directors confirmed that the
management of the Company has made verbal enquiries periodically with the
Controlling Shareholders, to which the Controlling Shareholders have responded
that they are not, or have not been, doing any business in competition with that
of the Group as prohibited under the NCU. In addition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has made its annual declaration of compliance with the NCU for
the year ended 3| December 2016 respectively, and the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have also reviewed the enforcement status
of the NCU, and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have abided by the
undertakings contained in the NCU.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure investors have a better understanding of the Group, our management
is pro-active in its investor relations initiatives. Our executive Directors and the
investor relations officers communicate with research analysts and institutional
investors on an on-going basis and meet with research analysts/investors after
our results announcements, attend major investors' conferences and participate
in non-deal roadshows to communicate the Company's financial performance and

business strategy.

During the year, our executive Directors and the investor relations officers have
met with a number of research analysts and investors, attended conferences as

well as non-deal roadshows as follows:
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March/April 2016 Attended 6 post results non-deal roadshows/

Investors conference calls
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August/September 2016 Attended |0 post results non-deal roadshows/

Investors conference calls
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Other period of the year 2016  Attended over 20 analysts or investors
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Disclaimer

The contents of this section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and disclosure
compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and should not be regarded as
legal or other professional advice from the Company to the Shareholders. Shareholders should
seek their own independent legal or other professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its Shareholders in reliance on any

contents of this section headed “Shareholders' Rights".
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The Directors are delighted to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial
statements on page 96 of this Annual Report. There were no significant changes

in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the financial year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
& Analysis” on pages |5 to 19 and pages 22 to 44 of this Annual Report
respectively. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Company are set out under "Business Review" of the “Management Discussion &
Analysis” section and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements on page 24

to 25 and pages 125 to 131 of this Annual Report, respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of

comprehensive income on pages 91 to 92 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
2016.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 210 of this Annual Report.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the vear in the land use rights and PP&E of
the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively on pages 144 to 147 of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements on page |72 of this Annual Report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 27 to

the consolidated financial statements on pages 182 to 186 of this Annual Report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 7 September 2012. The

purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board, at its discretion, to
grant options to selected eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise

their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

The Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme to Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors), the
Company's subsidiaries, employees of the Group and other persons the Board
considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group. In general, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules. The maximum number of shares available in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme reduced to 231,689,300 shares
after the Company's grant of 25,200,000 share options on 16 December 2015.
The subscription price of a share in respect of a particular option shall be not
less than the highest of (a) the official closing price of the shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price
of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value
of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall remain effective within a period of 10

years from that date.
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The Company granted 25,200,000 share options for the subscription of
25,200,000 shares of the Company to a distributor of the Group on |6
December 2015, representing 0.98% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this Annual Report. The exercise price of the
options granted is HKD3.00 and the exercise period is ten years from the date

of the offer for the grant.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to each eligible
participant in any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue at the date of grant, unless with the prior approval from the
Company's Shareholders and with such participants and his associates abstaining
from voting. Options granted to any Director or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates, shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive Directors. Where any option granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or any
of their respective associates, would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted to such person
in the 12 month period, (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in
issue at the date of such grant; and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares, in excess of HKD5 million, such grant of options shall
be subject to prior approval of the Company's Shareholders in general meeting

by way of poll.

An offer of a grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme shall remain
open for acceptance for 30 days from the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HKDI to the Company by way of consideration for
the grant. Options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time from the date of grant until the expiry of ten years
from such date. The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, and in any event shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of a
share. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of ten years from that date.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than

ten years after it has been granted. No option may be granted more than ten
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years after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (ie. 7 September
2012). Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of

ten years from the date of adoption.

Movements during the year of the options granted under the Share Option

Scheme of the Company to the participants were as follows:

Number of share options

BREBE

RERASLALHESSRMAL - TRIE
BEFEERAEHMETFRAERRAN
5 o

FARBARRBREERTLEALRN
BIRENEHERNT

outstanding

as at

| January 2016
R-B-XRF
—H—H

granted during exercised during

the year

outstanding as at
31 December
2016

*i

\

the year
R=
+=A

3

Exercise price Exercisable

per share Date of grant period

70

e RATE LER ﬁ

25,200,000 25,200,000

Note:

The vesting of the share option is conditional, subject to the achievement of the prescribed
sales and performance targets by the grantee within three years commencing from | January
2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of
Association or the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and

revised) of the Cayman Islands, the Company's place of incorporation.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 3| December 2016, the accumulated loss of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB5 million (31 December 2015: retained earnings RMBO. |
million). As at 3|1 December 2016, the share premium of the Company,
amounted to approximately RMBI,207 million (31 December 2015: RMBI,207
million), is distributable to Shareholders subject to the solvency test and the

sanction of an ordinary resolution.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YUE Zhigiang

Mr. LIU Chen

Mr. WONG Hak Kun

Non-executive Director
Ms. JIANG Xiaohong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI

In accordance with the provision of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. YUE Zhigiang, Mr. WONG Hak Kun, Ms. JIANG Xiaohong and Mr. Kevin
Cheng WEI shall retire at the forthcoming AGM 2017 and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election as Directors.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

The profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 45 to 49 of this Annual
Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM 2017 has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors had or was deemed to have
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, which are required to be recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SECURITIES
AND FUTURES ORDINANCE

As at 3| December 2016, the following persons had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long/short

position of interest

Capacity/Nature
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Number of Approximate

shares/ percentage of

underlying shares

shareholding

#E/ KR 5/ BHME RuBE RESOEIHL
Tibet Water Resources Limited (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner [,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
BEKERERAR (M) 8 ExAA 1,110,572,000 R &5
Maple Essence Investments Limited (Note 2) Long position Interest of controlled [,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
corporation
BEREBRAR(HE2) e REAEmER 110,572,000 B A& {7
True Asset Holdings Limited (Note 3) Long position Interest of controlled [,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
corporation
True Asset Holdings Limited ({3 3) e REEENER 1,110,572,000 B & 17
Mr. WANG Peter Jian (also known as Long position Interest of controlled [,110,572,000 shares 43.23%

Mr. WANG Jian Peter) (Note 3 & 4) corporation
FREETE3&4) e REEENER

+ ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Tyee Capital Funds SPC -

Tyee Capital Tibet Fund SP (Note 5)
Tyee Capital Funds SPC —

Tyee Capital Tibet Fund SP (P 5)

Tyee Capital Funds SPC

Tyee Capital Funds SPC

Tyee Capital Management (Cayman) Limited

Tyee Capital Management (Cayman) Limited

Tyee Capital Group Limited (BVI)

Tyee Capital Group Limited (BVI)

Tian Yee Capital Holdings Limited (BVI)

Tian Yee Capital Holdings Limited (BVI)

Li Jiaman

Tyee Capital Management Limited
Tyee Capital Management Limited

Long/short
position
B/ KR

Long position

Long position

e
Long position
e
Long position
e
Long position
e
Long position
iR
Long position

e

Long position
30

Capacity/Nature

of interest

5t/ EEME

Investment manager

RELE

Interest of controlled

corporation
RiEAE LD

Interest of controlled

corporation

REAENED

Interest of controlled

corporation

REEENER

Interest of controlled

corporation
gz ik 5

Interest of controlled

corporation

R EE R L

Interest of controlled

corporation
RELEE N

Investment manager

RERE

Number of

shares/

underlying shares

Ko WHE

145,714,285 shares

145,714,285 BA 1

145,714,285 shares

145,714,285 BA% 17

145,714,285 shares

145,714,285 AR 17

145,714,285 shares

145,714,285 BA 1

145,714,285 shares

145,714,285 B A& {7

145,714,285 shares

145,714,285 B {7

145,714,285 shares

145,714,285 B {7

145,714,285 shares
145,714,285 B A% {7
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Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
RESNED L

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%
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Notes:

Tibet Water Resources Limited is held as to 98.67% by Maple Essence Investments
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by True Asset Holdings Limited. Tibet Water
Resources Limited holds |,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

Maple Essence Investments Limited holds 98.67% equity interest in Tibet Water
Resources Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested in the |,110,572,000 shares
in the Company in which Tibet Water Resources Limited is interested. Maple Essence

Investments Limited is wholly-owned by True Asset Holdings Limited.

True Asset Holdings Limited holds 98.67% equity interest in Tibet Water Resources
Limited through Maple Essence Investments Limited. Therefore, True Asset Holdings
Limited is deemed to be interested in I,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

True Asset Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WANG Peter Jian. Therefore, Mr.
WANG Peter Jian is deemed to be interested in [,110,572,000 Shares in the Company
in which Tibet Water Resources Limited is interested. For the purpose of the SFO, the
spouse of Mr. WANG Peter Jian is taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to the
said 1,110,572,000 Shares. The interest disclosed by the spouse of Mr. WANG Peter Jian
is that of Mr. WANG Peter Jian which is deemed to be attributed to her pursuant to
the SFO for disclosure purposes. Nevertheless, she has no interest, legal or beneficial, in

those shares.

Tyee Capital Funds SPC — Tyee Capital Tibet Fund SP holds the 6% convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$510,000,000 due 2019. Upon full exercise of
the conversion rights, Tyee Capital Funds SPC — Tyee Capital Tibet Fund SP will hold
145,714,285 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors and the chief

executive of the Company were not aware of any other person (other than the

Directors and the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed

to have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock

Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or

which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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Subsequent to 3| December 2016, Tibet Water Resources Limited (our then
Controlling Shareholder) had entered into agreements with independent third
parties and agreed to sell an aggregate of 719,290,040 shares of the Company,
representing an aggregate of 28% of the total issued shares of the Company.
For details of these transactions, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 10 January 2017 and Il January 2017. Upon completion of
these transactions, Tibet Water Resources Limited will hold 391,281,960 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 15.23% of the issued share capital
of the Company, and will cease to be a controlling shareholder of the Company
and Khorgos Tianshan No.| will become the single largest shareholder of the

Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any arrangement which enables the existing Directors or chief
executive to have the right to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other legal entities.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Other than operating a Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
participating in the state managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC, the
Group has not operated any other retirement benefits schemes for the Group's

employees.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Board

on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined

in the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year, sales to the Group's five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 42% and
64% of the total sales and total purchases for the year, respectively. The Group's
largest customer and supplier accounted for approximately 1% and 26% of the

total sales and total purchases for the financial year, respectively.

During the financial year, none of (i) the Directors or any of their close
associates, or (ii) any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital), had any

interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive

Directors are independent of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The utilisation status of the net proceeds from the Company's initial public

offering is set out on page 42 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
reasonable knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of its Shares in the hands of the public in
accordance with the Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date of the issue of

this Annual Report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to

approximately RMBO.I million (2015: nil).
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements and “Events After the Balance
Sheet Date” of "MD&A" section on page 204 and page 36 of this Annual Report,

respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company had reviewed the Group's annual results
for the year ended 3| December 2016 and provided advice and comments

thereon.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire at the conclusion of
the forthcoming AGM 2017 and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment

as external auditor of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain transactions summarized in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 also constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter [4A
of the Listing Rules. As those transactions were all de minimis transactions,
they were exempt from all the reporting, announcement and independent

shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Jesper Bjoern MADSEN

Chairman

24 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYRERE

i
pwc

To the shareholders of Tibet Water Resources Ltd.

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Tibet Water Resources Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 89 to 209,

which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BRERAKE

BARKEFRERATRR
(RFASBESEMKLNERAF)

ER
EMEFHTHAR

DERE8IE 209 AR KERAR A A
(ATEEERR D RAMBLRR(ATE
BIEEEDNEEMBRER  EHEE:

¢ Elé—? /\f‘5~|> H + E'E'IJZ
AEBER

. BERALFENGRAERE

- BHEZALFEMNGEERERGEE

. BEZALEENEARSRDE

* HEZHIEENEAESRER
&

. BAMBRENE BEIDRHR
RHE o

BHWER

BMRA ZIANMBRRCRAAR

BHHREEN(ERMEREERNDEE
mAsHRE ESER-_T—X E+=A
=+ -BEMEANBRARESEEZAL
FENGEUBRARGERERE - IE
EREB(DRBIDNEERTEBEE -



BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(“ISAs™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Impairment of goodwill and investment in an associate

. Accounting treatment for convertible bond
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Key Audit Matter

HREITER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANFNMAEEERETER

Impairment of goodwill and investment in an associate

Refer to Note 4, Note 10 and Note |2 to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 3| December 2016, goodwill recognised in relation
to the acquisition of Tiandi Green Beverages Co., Ltd.
(“Tiandi Green”), a subsidiary of the Group, amounted to
RMB721 million; and the investment in an associate that
arose from the acquisition of Tibet Highland Natural Water
Limited (“Highland Natural Water”) amounted to RMBI,252
million (with goodwill relating to the associate amounting to
RMB1,064 million). No impairment loss was provided based on
management'’s impairment analysis.

We focused on the impairment of these areas due to the
followings:

- the size of the goodwill/investment in an associate
balances;

- the management adopted “value-in-use” of related cash
generating units to determine the recoverable amount
of goodwill/investment in associate. Such “value-in-use”
determination involved significant judgements made by
management about the future results of the business
and the discount rates applied to future cash flow
forecasts. As the assessment involved consideration of
future events and uncertainty, there was a risk that the
judgement was inappropriate.
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We discussed and evaluated the model used by management
in determining the recoverable amount for the impairment
analysis and verified the mathematical accuracy of the cash
flow model used to estimate value-in-use.

We evaluated management's future cash flow forecasts for
Tiandi Green and Highland Natural Water, including the
reasonableness of the forecasts in the context of historical
results of the businesses and production capacity, and
comparing the parameters used with independently obtained
market data. We also assessed the appropriateness of the
discount rates and long-term growth rates used and considered
that they fell within our range of independently obtained
market data.

We obtained and evaluated management's sensitivity analysis
to ascertain the impact of reasonably possible changes and
we performed re-calculation independently for the downside
changes in management's sensitivity analysis model, focusing
on the most sensitive assumptions, including annual revenue
growth rate, long term revenue growth rate, gross margin,
discount rate and government subsidy income.

We satisfied ourselves that management's impairment analysis
was supported by evidence obtained.
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Key Audit Matter

HREITER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RANETNNEERREETSR

Accounting treatment for convertible bond
Refer to Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements

We focused on this area due to the size of the convertible
bond (RMB458 million in liability and RMBI18 million in equity
as at 31 December 2016) as well as the complexity of the

accounting treatment involved.

We obtained the subscription agreement of the convertible
bond to understand the terms and conditions of the
convertible bond. We understood details of the key terms,
such as the principal amount; the subscription date; the
issuance date; the coupon rate; the conversion price; the
adjustments to the conversion price and the early redemption
options. We also evaluated and challenged management's
assessment of the accounting treatment of the convertible

bond, in particular the following:

- the applicable accounting standards used for the
convertible bond, IFRS2 — shared-based payment against
IAS32 — financial instruments: presentation and IAS39 —

financial instruments: recognition and measurement;

- the classification and measurement of the convertible
bond under IAS 32 and IAS 39;

- determination of the fair value of the convertible bond

at “commitment” date and “issuance” date;

- the accounting treatment of the difference between the
nominal value of the convertible bond and the fair value

of the convertible bond at the issuance date;

- the identification of embedded derivatives associated
with the convertible bond and the related accounting

treatment; and

- the accounting treatment of the convertible bond at
initial recognition and subsequent measurement under
IAS 32 and IAS 39.

We considered that management's accounting treatment for
the convertible bond was supported by the evidence we

obtained.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

%

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B EBEATH &

Hpz 8
BERRERAHEMESER - HMESE
RBRERNOAEREE - BIEREEEPHR

REBPIZHEMRS -

RAGSEAMBHREROBRL MRELMIE

g BN T HZERAMESEREMEH
m%u DnFFH °
EHMBAF LM BRERE - KRANETR

%%ﬁméﬂ'ﬁkﬂﬁ¢'%ﬁﬁm%%

LR BHRRIBMERTBRETHM
T%W%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’&%@?ﬁ&ﬁ
RERBRILHOFR

M%ﬁ1aﬁ&ﬁﬁu°

EENERZEER RSV BRRAK
EHEE
ERREZEAERBEBRMBREENR
EB(ARKOIDMBERR CREEENTE
MERABHRE  YVHERBREREWHE
WMEOBE T FTERPREFERMERN
BEARERRIMTIROANITEHEE -

ERBEAUBEEN FERETE &
EHBEEENEN  WEAPIERTRE

HEEELEEMNEE  URERFERSE
REF AR BFEFEEHK ESERR
FELEE  SBEEBERNBEATER -

EZZECRAEE AR

2o

B RSB

%

AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016




A4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B KBATH &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016

REMHEAFREMBRRAENER

BAMBE  RUBREGAMBHREAZES

FERNRFRERMEHOEMERHR
RABMGAREFRE  XHABRRMABEEN
BBMRE - RAEAERRRBSRIAN
BR BRItz KRREREEME R - B
TERARENABTRAEMEMALE L3
AEEFEL - AEREZLSKFNRE -
ENRERERBEREENETHETER
—EAERRAFERBEER - SHRBL
A LA RRF Sk EERR 5l - MRS E BT M
&5 SRR AIRER BRI HHRKER
FRBEAMBRRMELNEERE - A
i I IR AR B B 5 kA BR RO B8 SRR v 1
RIEEK °

ERBEEERESRAETRANBRET - &
PUERM TREHAE - (R TREEREE -
IR -

o BRIR TG B EEE SRR T B BUAR
EHBREFEEABERRAHR
B BRETRITEN R A E L
Bk URBEZTEMEENETR
FEABRMELOER - HREGE
MRS RER BE EEERE
BB EBRADEHZE B
BREEEFARFMERMNEAER
RAHREBRER R EERERME
BHERHERRAKER

- THREZFEBNAEED - URE
BEENEERF BEEMNYEY F
SEARRENNAREERER -



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is BRIAN MING YAN CHOIL.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEEERMEK
A De »
2016 0
—E-REF I
ote RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR K&
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights T fE e 7 30,693 31,417
Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") ME - BB NEE
(0% BERKED) 8 619,387 655,505
Intangible assets BV EE 9 132,552 154,638
Goodwill BE 10 721,139 721,139
Investment in associates REEE A RIRIRE 12 1,307,508 1,062,595
Deferred income tax assets EREFENEE 22 2,818 3,038
Prepayments AR RIE [5 65,476 6,792
Other receivables and other assets Hopth PR B B & 16 — 360
2,879,573 2,635,484
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables FERE 55 I3 193,926 205,266
Prepayments AR IR 15 190,147 20,942
Prepaid enterprise income tax AR EEMEH 8,508 10,798
Other receivables and other assets Hih R R R E A& E 16 249,770 87,341
Inventories 7E |7 67,516 72,528
Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS") AN ESREE
((MTHHESREE]) 8 186,230 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRe%EEY 19 1,042,398 628,132
1,938,495 1,025,007
Total assets HEE 4,818,068 3,660,491
Equity E#R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AL THEHE AMELER
Share capital ERZN 20 21,363 21,363
Share premium B in (B 20 1,206,829 1,206,829
Reserves f#iE 21 279,202 235,269
Retained earnings BiFlz 1,615,205 1,414,344
3,122,599 2,877,805
Non-controlling interests FERER [ 371,965 319,202
Total equity RSB 3,494,564 3,197,007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

HEEEEREKE)
A De be
2016 0
—E-REF Al
ote RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR K&
Liabilities 8
Non-current liabilities *kRBER
Bank borrowings RITIER 27 190,000 —
Deferred revenue EIEWA 24 24,241 22,058
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFETHARE 22 20,652 38,340
Convertible bond - liability component ARk ES - BEHS 28 458,066 —
692,959 60,398
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BB 5K 25 78,055 72,827
Deferred revenue and advances received
from customers EREWA R BRE P 23 14,710 44,868
Enterprise income tax payable FER (PG 28,210 20,558
Accruals and other payables TERE A L E MR 26 53,570 64,833
Bank borrowings RITER 27 456,000 200,000
630,545 403,086
Total liabilities REAE 1,323,504 463,484
Total equity and liabilities ERRkaBERE 4,818,068 3,660,491
The notes on pages 96 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FICE29 BRI T RZEHREVBREN

statements.

The financial statements on pages 87 to 207 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf.

FU Lin {43
Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
oy ftd

%

3 H = :
2016 0
—E-RE i
ote RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR S
Revenue WA 6 868,092 832,348
Cost of sales SHE R 30 (348,408) (330,168)
Gross profit EF 519,684 502,180
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER 30 (103,250) (108,366)
Administrative expenses THERA 30 (78,879) (74,806)
Other gains, net Hih 715 - F5 29 55,619 44,403
Operating profit RERE 393,174 36341 |
Finance income B s s 21,038 10,397
Finance costs BsER (40,276) (20,496)
Finance costs, net MBER  FE 32 (19,238) (10,099)
Share of profit of associates JEIEBEE A RIAE 12 26,913 21,332
Profit before income tax BR BT 15 %54 A I 78 400,849 374,644
Income tax expense gt & A 33 (41,694) (51,573)
Profit for the year FEFME 359,155 323,071
Profit attributable to: FEALFIE
— Owners of the Company —ARBHEAA 307,724 276,967
— Non-controlling interests — JEVER i 51,431 46,104
359,155 323,071
Earnings per share for profit attributable EARERAEERE
to owners of the Company BRER
— Earnings per share (basic and diluted) -SREFN (EXR#E)
(RMB cents per share) (BRAR®S) 34 11.98 10.78
The notes on pages 96 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F96E 209 BN AZEHREVBHREN

statements.
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HETHENEZ &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

El H

2016 0
—E-REF h
ote RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR S

Profit for the year 359,155 323,071
Other comprehensive income: Hitt 2 E K :
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently -1 AJ RAEF1E B %7 7 4H

to profit or Joss FEmAIEH
Currency translation differences SVETE AR 21 1,612 4,391
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently AIRE1% R B HE

to profit or loss FEmAEH
Change in value of AFS At EeREERE 18 6,230 —
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHMREKES - NRHIE

net of tax 7,842 4,391
Total comprehensive income for the year FEAZENE 366,997 327,462
Attributable to:
— Owners of the Company —ARAHEBA 314,234 281,358
— Non-controlling interests — IR e 52,763 46,104
Total comprehensive income for the year FEHZHEKEZ 366,997 327,462
The notes on pages 96 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F96E209 BN RZERE T BHRRN

statements.

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEZEERK

Attributable to owners of the Company

%

KATREARL
Non-
Share Share Retained controlling Total
capital premium Reserves earnings Total interests equity
Bx  RtiEd i EERE it FERER W BRAER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
At | January 2015 RZE-1F-A-H 21,363 1,206,829 210,182 1,239,147 2671521 273,098 2950619
Profit for the year EEME - - - 276,967 276,967 46,104 323,071
Currency translation NEREEE
differences — — 4391 — 4391 - 4391
Total comprehensive income  FF 24 5E
for the year — - 4391 276967 281,358 46,104 327461
Appropriations to statutory RNACBRLRE
surplus reserve (Note 21)  (Ff3E21) - - 2069 (20,696) - - -
Dividends RE - - — (81,074) (81,074) - (81,074)
At 31 December 2015 R-2-EFt2A
=1-H 21,363 1,206,829 235,269 1,414,344 2,877,805 319,202 3,197,007
Profit for the year FERNE — - - 307,124 307,124 51431 359,155
Currency translation M EEE
differences = = [,612 = [,612 = 1,612
Change in value of AFS It LECRER
EERD - = 4898 - 4,898 1332 6,230
Total comprehensive income FE2ANFEH
for the year = = 6,510 307,724 314,234 52,763 366,997
Convertible bond-equity TRRES - EEHD
component (Note 28) (M 28) — — 18,385 — 18,385 = 18,385
Appropriations to statutory  RIVAERBAEE
surplus reserve (Note 21) (M 21) — — 19,038 (19,038) = = =
Dividends (Note 35) RE (ME3s) - — = (87,825) (87,825) = (87,829)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+-A=1-H 21363 1,206,829 279200 1615205 3,122,599 371965 3494564

The notes on pages 96 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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GEBEEhEX

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

El H = <
2016 0
ZE-RE h
ote RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF 7 7
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRALSR
Cash generated from operations REEFBHEENE S 36 260,008 449,044
Interest received B LS 3,770 13,920
Income tax paid EMMER (49,221) (24,622)
Net cash generated from operating activities RERHEENRFHE 214,557 438,342
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHRER
Purchases of PP&E BEME  BFEL&E (93,482) (23,160)
Cash received from government grants BYWERETEERA
related to fixed assets IR FENE 2 4,860 4,950
Purchases of AFS BERHLESREE 8 (460,000) (390,000)
Proceeds from disposal of AFS HEAREECRIEE
PG 3R 287,826 396,732
Loans granted to third parties BTE=AHNEK (368,899) (50,000)
Repayments of loans received from third parties EEBEWRE=ZFER 296,000 14,000
Loans granted to a related party BT A HER — (57,000)
Repayments of loans received from BRC AR H B
a related party — 57,000
Amounts received from third parties B E =7 70E 1,261,750 595,000
Amounts paid to third parties BENE=ARIE (1,113,598) (670,070)
Amounts received from a related party B U B 5 3KIE 238,348 265,070
Amounts paid to a related party GENC) g e (425,000) (190,000)
Prepayment for equity investment in a third party 788 =77 BR#EIR & RTEF 5IE 15 (17,400) —
Investment in associates REFE QAR E 12 (218,000) (440,000)
Net cash used in investing activities REREMAREFE (607,595) (487,478)

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUE)
V=1 ‘ﬁéﬂlbg ﬁ(é‘%;)

%

El H = <
2016 0
ZE-RE f
ote RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ?
Cash flows from financing activities METHRER
Dividends paid to shareholders ERRERR S 35 (87,825) (81,074)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEFETA 556,000 250,000
Repayments of bank borrowings and interests EEFITERRNE (120,997) (55,810)
Repayments of borrowings from government EEBTER — (200,000)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bond BITRRRESF IS TIA 28 469,613 —
Transaction costs paid relating ENEHRRRESRSE
to convertible bond (1,655) —
Coupon payments relating to convertible bond BRI RREFNEEMNK 28 (14,387) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREEBRE /(AT
financing activities ReFHE 800,749 (86,884)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and REeRBESENMNEM
cash equivalents (B2) =8 407,711 (136,020)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F#IR & RREEEY 628,132 763,409
Exchange translation gains on cash and
cash equivalents RekHeZEYEL K 6,555 743
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRACRALSZEY 19 1,042,398 628,132
The notes on pages 96 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E£962 209 BN AREREMBREN

statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 8
November 2010. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY'I-1 111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is engaged in

production and sales of water products and beer products in the PRC.

The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 30
June 2011,

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board on 24 March 2017.

Key event

On 24 June 2016, the Group issued convertible bond at nominal value of
Hong Kong Dollar (“*HKD™) 525,000,000 (equivalent to RMB469,613,000)
with annual coupon rate of 6% and conversion price of HKD3.50 per

ordinary share. Further details are given in Note 28.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable IFRSs and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS"), which are
carried at fair value.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1  Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to

the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments to standards have been adopted by the Group

for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after | January
2016:

. Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations —

Amendments to IFRS ||

. Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation
— Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

. Annual improvements to IFRS 2012 — 2014 cycle, and

. Disclosure initiative — amendments to IAS .

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the

current year or any prior year and is not likely to affect future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after | January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the following as set

out below:

(i) IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial
assets. The standard does not need to be applied until | January 2018 but
is available for early adoption. The Group does not expect to adopt the

new standard before | January 2018.

While the Group has yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the
classification and measurement of financial assets, debt instruments
currently classified as AFS would appear to satisfy the conditions for
classification as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") and hence there will be no change to the accounting for these

assets.

Accordingly the Group does not expect the new guidance to have a
significant impact on the classification and measurement of its financial

assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting for financial liabilities,
as the new requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities
that are designated at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does
not have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred
from 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have
not been changed. The new hedge accounting rules are not expected to
have significant impact to the Group given that the Group does not have

any hedging relationships.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

(i) IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit losses (“ECL") rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under IAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
contract assets under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
lease receivables, loan commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. While the Group has not yet undertaken a detailed assessment
of how its impairment provisions would be affected by the new model, it

may result in earlier recognition of credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group's disclosures about its financial instruments particularly
in the year of the adoption of the new standard. The Group will continue

to make detailed assessments of the effect from the new standard.

(i) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") has issued a new
standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which
covers revenue arising from the sale of goods and the rendering of services

and IAS |'| which covers construction contracts.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised

when control of a good or service transfers to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

(i) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption. The new standard is effective for first interim
periods within annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January

2018, and will allow early adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the new standard
on the Group's financial statements and at this stage, the Group is not able
to estimate the overall effect of the new rules on the Group's financial
statements. The Group will make more detailed assessments of the effect
over the next twelve months. The Group does not expect to adopt the

new standard before | January 2018.

(iii)  IFRS 16 Leasing

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the balance
sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will not

significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's operating
leases. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB2,716,000, see Note 37. However, the Group
has not yet determined to what extent these commitments will result in
the recognition of an asset and a liability for future payments and how this

will affect the Group's profit and classification of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
(i) IFRS 16 Leasing (continued)

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-
term and low value leases and some commitments may relate to

arrangements that will not qualify as leases under IFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after
| January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the

standard before its effective date.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective

that would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.] Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that

control ceases.

%

HER B EM T

TESTEREBMEE)

22 EBHRRZBREESR)

b)  ERRARIFETEA R ()
(il BEIRMBRELAE IKEE

(%)

*“%%T%lﬁﬁfﬁ&ﬁﬁfﬁ
HEMERRREBHEEEXAR
%ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁKﬁél%%%ﬁ%
RAIFE IR THEZKOTHAER -

FEAAN-E-NE-A—B#2
4B A B B IS SR IR o R B
B - AREEL B E AR TR
78| -

I 4 e R A R BB B B 3R 5
AERTEREENREZES
ERYeHrAREELEARE -

23 KEBAHE

231 Apf
MEBAREAEEEBEHIENER
(BEFEER) WAKENL2RE
BOEBREUERRAERRLE
BEMN RemERYZEBNEN
FEEOW AAKEHZERRE
BEGIRE - BRI B HEHIEER
EAREEEHRAMAR - TR EH
R EE BREUBAHALR ©

%

AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016 101




4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1  Consolidation (continued)

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts

of acquiree's identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or

losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1  Consolidation (continued)

(a)  Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been

adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

232 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment,
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4  Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investments in
associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of the

associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4  Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of an

associate” in the statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised

in the statement of profit or loss.

2.5  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions for

the Group.
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4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6  Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group's
presentation currency. The functional currency of the operational entities

located in the PRC is RMB, and the Company's functional currency is HKD.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, payables and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss within “finance income, net”.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated

at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses

are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that

is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost less accumulated impairment losses of each asset to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Useful lives
Buildings 12 to 40 years
Machinery 5tol5 years
Vehicles 3 to 8 years
Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years
Others 10 to 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other gains, net” in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

%

HER B EM T

FTESHBEHMEE)

2.7 YE - BERRE

ME  BENMRERELRARR:T
TERBREEBEIE -FELRABE
WHEZSHEEREENES

RERAEERAESARE B RE
ZIA B AR RREENEM%EB
AR ST ER - TEFABEN
REEXERAR - BEBEE(NE
)  BEREOMKEER L#ER -
FEEMGEENEEEREEELN
MEHEN G RERT X -

TEUNEREFE  BEREENK
AR RETREE BR NI E R F
MOREHFIHEE

ST

BF 2E40%
& 52 |54
B 3IE8F
EXEY 3ESE
Hith 102204

EENHBEBREREHNE LR
MR DEEEER FIEHEE -

WEERBESRNETTLE S
B ZBEEENEEENERRE
WelesE(MFE2.10) °

R E MRS M EREMEARER
EMERET  TAEGABDERAIE
RIS - FE PR o

%

AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016 107




4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing costs. No provision
for depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned
are available for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and

equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

2.8 Intangible assets

2.8.1 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess
of the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the

acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at

the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

2.82 Trade name

Trade name acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Trade name has a finite useful life and is carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trade name over their

estimated useful lives of 18.2 years.

283 Distribution network

Distribution network acquired in a business combination is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The distribution network has a finite
useful life of 8 years and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected

life of the distribution network.

2.9  Land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land ownership right
exists. The Group acquired the rights to use certain land and the premiums
paid for such rights are recorded as land use rights, which are stated at
cost and amortised over the use terms of 50 years using the straight-line
method.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows . Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and AFS. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's receivables comprise ‘trade receivables” (Note 13),
“other receivables” (Note 16), “cash and cash equivalents” (Note 19) in
the consolidated balance sheet. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

AFS is non-derivative that is either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose
of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. AFS are
subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When securities classified as available
for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the statement of profit or loss as
“other gains, net”. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit or

loss as part of other gains.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,

insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.13  Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or

group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)  Loans and receivables (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the

loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b) AFS
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is reclassified from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016

TESHBREMEE)
213 SREEREE)
@ EHRERTEE)
RERRERFEERNNE - BRE
BORBEERTERMGTRARRS
REMERDARELNRRERRE
RIBEREERERMNERNHRE
MENZENE - BEREET AH
B MBXERAESSBERTE

27
e

MERERRE  HEBREERD
R A BB B 2 XA KR ERE
REZFENZH(PIMEBEANERT
BAWE) - AIZ AT ARERMRER X
AEHFSBRERTER -

b)) AHLETHEE
AEERSERERRTIERETEES
FRET - BHeREES—HenE
ELRRE -

HEBEFME - WHREFERHS
& ARFEBRRBERAKEH
REEZZEAEFNEHARESER
MEMEEREBETE)NERP
BHOR YRBEPER - M »
HRHE  nBEAHLENERE
FRABEEEN MABEREERE
mEAREBRREENEHETEMN
B RREERESGFSRERER -

Fo

D



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)  AFS (continued)

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is reclassified from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. See Note
2.1 for further information about group’s accounting for trade receivables

and Note 2.13 for a description of the group’s impairment policies.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less provision for impairment.

%

HER B EM T

TEEHEHEREE)

213 SWMEEREBEE)

b) HHRLEZFHAEE)
RREREMNE  BEAFFNANE
EBREXRPEREXNANBERE
ELRRENER  MEREWNESR
B RIZFEE(RBER AR B A
DNABEZEBREMTANERE
RS REERAEBEBTE) N EEF
EFOE TRERTER #EET
ARNGEBRRTERNHNEBET
BEBRABRERE -

214 5K
FEERARAZRFEFORESE
SIBE o BRATERMBEE I EETE -
KaBRKABERME - B8
HHeEEER KR EEMBERH
T(EREEEZRN) ERFE
RABREBHHNEASBRERTY
HERX o

215 FEWRE 5 R At FE UK
FUESZFERAREBBEFAE
38 6 78 am S 1R 1 AR 7S 1 B Y R
TR o i U 5 R % HL At FE W R TR
BE—FHARKRE (MPEEFLE
BET - ARARRER)  BSBAR
PEE - B 2V RFRPEE
FRASERKE S K G RIET AN
E—TFE BE2EME2L &
EREBR AN F2HME2.13 -

BWE SR L E b EBFIARSEE
RGHER - RRANERNTER
BRI R ER BT E -

%

AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016




4

114

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,

they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the

period of the facility to which it relates.

Convertible bond issued by the Company that contain both a liability and
equity components are classified separately into these respective items on
initial recognition. The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible
bond is determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the bond. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. The
convention option is classified as equity since the Group has no contractual
obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset nor to deliver a variable
number of shares to settle the option. It is recognised and included in

shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowings (continued)

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity
issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the

financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the end of the reporting period.

220 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

22| Deferred revenue and advance received from customers

Deferred revenue and advance received from customers represent the
consideration allocated to the goods to be delivered in future. Deferred
revenue also include government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment (Note 2.26). Deferred revenue is stated at the consideration
allocated less the amount previously recognised as revenue upon the

delivery of goods to the wholesaler (Note 2.25).

222 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22  Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability

to control the reversal of the temporary difference not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22  Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

The employee benefit expenses mainly include salary, bonus, allowances
and other expenditures incurred in exchange for the employee services. All
employee benefit obligations are recognised during the period when the
services are provided, and charged to the consolidated statement of profit

or loss or included in the cost of the related assets.

(a)  Pension obligations - defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to

employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent

that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and other
employee social insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceilings. The Group's liability in respect of

these funds is limited to the contributions payable in each period.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of

time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown as net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type

of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods — wholesale and retail

The Group manufactures and sells a range of water products and beer
products in the wholesale and retail market. The Group also sells bottle
preforms and caps to a related party. Sales of goods are recognised when
a group entity has delivered products to the distributors/retailers/related
party, the distributors/retailers/related party have full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the distributors/retailers/related party's acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the
specified location and accepted by distributors/retailers/related party; the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the distributors/

retailers/related party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)  Sales of goods — wholesale and retail (continued)

Sales of water products to certain distributors or end customers are made
in form of Water Cards (“Water Cards Sales Arrangement”). Under the
Water Cards Sales Arrangement with the distributors, the distributors
sell the Water Cards to the end customers and use the logistics network,
which is designed by the Group with the Group's long-term cooperative
logistics suppliers, to deliver water products to the designated locations at
the request of the end customers when the Water Cards are redeemed
before the expiry dates; and relevant logistics expenses are charged to
the Group. Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales Arrangement are
deferred as the Group has ultimate obligations towards the card holders.
Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales Arrangement are recognised
when the Water Cards are redeemed by the end customers and the water
products are delivered, or when the Water Cards are expired, whichever

is earlier.

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest

rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(c)  Rental income

Rental income from leasing of a production line is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

lease.

2.26 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group

will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with

the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred revenue and are credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

expected lives of the related assets (Note 2.21).

227 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases as lessee (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Rental received under
operating leases as lessor (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is
recorded as revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the

dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

229 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. For equity-settled share-based
payment transactions, the Group measures the goods or services received,
and the corresponding increase in equity, directly, at the fair value of the
goods or services received, unless that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably. If the Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods
or services received, the Group shall measure their value, and the
corresponding increase in equity, indirectly, by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of the services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is charged to the statement of profit

or loss when the services are received.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of profit or loss, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity. When the options are exercised,
the company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (and share

premium).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)  Market nisk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within the Group
is RMB and most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its cash exchange

transactions, which are primarily denominated in HKD.

To mitigate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations, the Group continually
assesses and monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risk. During the
year ended 3| December 2016, management did not consider it necessary
to enter into any hedging transactions in order to reduce the exposure to
foreign exchange risk, because the exposure, after netting off the assets

and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not significant.

As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against HKD with all other variables held constant, the total net assets
of the Group would have been approximately RMB68,482,000 (2015:
RMB62,156,000) higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange translation of the financial statements for the Company and its
Hong Kong subsidiary whose functional currency is HKD; the post-tax
profit for the year would have been RMB4,789,000 (2015: RMB4,011,000)

higher/lower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)  Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates. During 2016 and 2015, the Group's borrowings at variable rates
were all denominated in RMB. At 31 December 2016, if interest rates on
RMB-denominated floating-rate borrowings had been 5% higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB298,000 (2015: RMB423,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of

higher/lower interest expense on floating-rate borrowings.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has bank borrowings amounting to
RMB236,000,000 (2015: nil) and convertible bond of RMB458,066,000
(2015: nil) at fixed interest rates and these expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts
of bank borrowings with fixed interest rates approximated their fair value
due to their short tenures and the influence of fair value interest rate risk
is marginal. If market interest rate for the convertible bond had been 5%
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the fair value of the
convertible bond would have been RMB3,681,000 (2015: nil) lower/higher.
There was no impact on the Group's post-tax profits or net assets given

the liability portion of the convertible bond is carried at amortised cost.

(b)  Credit nisk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other
receivables, represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to those financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk (continued)

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major
financial institutions located in the PRC including the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, which management believes are of high credit
quality. There was no recent history of default of cash and cash equivalents

from such financial institutions/authorities.

The Group's trade receivables due from two single external customers
are approximately RMB63,063,000, representing 33% of the balance
of the Group's trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB186,588,000, 91%). The trade receivables of one customer is
approximately RMB36,522,000, representing 19% of the balance
of the Group's trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB154,000,000, 75%). The Group's previous sales contract with this
customer ended on 30 June 2015, and in April 2016, the Group entered
into a new sales contract with this customer. The trade receivables of the
other customer is approximately RMB26,541,000, representing 14% of the
balance of the Group's trade receivables as at 3|1 December 2016 (2015:
RMB32,588,000, 16%). In view of the history of business dealings made
with these two customers and the sound financial position and reputation
of these two customers, management believes that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding receivables balance due
from these two customers. The Group's other trade receivables are due
from other third parties and associates (Note 38). The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its customers/
debtors on an individual basis, taking into account their financial position,
past experience and other factors, and generally does not require collateral
from the customers/debtors on the outstanding balances. Based on the
expected realisation and timing for collection of the outstanding balances,
the Group maintains its provision for doubtful accounts and actual losses
incurred have been within management’s expectation, and management
believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding trade receivables balances. In the event that the Group fails to
collect the outstanding trade receivables due from the two single external
customers, the Group's financial position and operating results will be

adversely affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit nisk (continued)

As at 3| December 2016, the Group has unsecured loans to several
independent third parties amounting to RMB156,920,000 (2015: the
Group has unsecured loan to two independent third parties amounting to
RMB62,599,000) and loan to an associate amounting to RMB54,821,000
(2015: RMB21,321,000). Management performed credit evaluations of
the financial conditions of the counter parties and considered that these
loans and cash advances will be repaid on time with no collectability
risks; management concluded that no impairment provision was necessary
accordingly. In the event that the counter parties could not make payments
on time or default their payments, the Group's financial position and

operating results will be adversely affected.

There was no other financial asset carrying a significant exposure to credit

risk.

See Note |4 for further disclosure on credit risk.

(c)  Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group's treasury function allows

flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position

based on the expected cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)  Liguidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities in relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table

are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Less than | year I-2 years 2-3 years
—F LR —ZWME ME=&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR¥T T
Group AEH
At 3| December 2016 R-B-XRE+Z-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITIERK 467,229 193,951 —
Convertible bond AR ES 28,177 28,177 483,231
Trade payables (Note 25) FERE SR (H5E25) 78,055 — —
Other financial liabilities Hitemas 28,261 — —
At 3| December 2015 R-B-HEF+=A=+-H
Bank borrowings RITE 203,859 — —
Trade payables (Note 25) JERE SR (MiFE25) 72,827 — —
Other financial liabilities Hitema s 48,111 — —
The Group provided a financial guarantee amounting to RMB260,000,000 RZE-—RETZA=+—H K

to an associate company for obtaining bank borrowing as at 3| December
2016 (31 December 2015: RMB260,000,000). Given the financial position
and earning ability of the associate company, management believe that the
risk of default for the associate company for the loan repayment is very
low and thus management believes that there is no material liquidity risk

arising from the financial guarantee provided by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group's capital is mainly from equity funding and borrowings from
banks for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided
by total capital. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the

consolidated balance sheet plus borrowings.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
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TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at
fair value as at 31 December 2016 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into

three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

® Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

AFS At EemEE
— R EREEMIBE ER 186,230

— Investments in structured financial products
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ESY
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Total assets HMEE

186,230

As at 31 December 2016, the Group only had level 2 financial instruments,
which related to AFS investments-structured financial products issued by a
commercial fund company, with return based on the underlying investments
mainly in debt instruments and are not traded in an active market. The fair
value is determined by using valuation techniques such as expected return
from the underlying investments. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as

possible on entity specific estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@)  Depreciation and amortisation

The Group's management determines the residual value, useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual residual value
and useful lives of plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where residual value or useful lives are
less than previous estimates, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The

current estimated useful lives are stated in Note 2.7.

(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which

such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Income taxes (continued)
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation

in the periods in which such estimates are changed.

Dividends derived from the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC earned
after | January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%. The
Group reassessed its needs to make distributions out of its subsidiaries in
the PRC. As a result, withholding income tax has been provided for the
undistributed profits to the extent they are expected to be distributed in

future.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences are recognised
as management considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

() Impairment review

(1) Goodwill arising from acquisition of a subsidiary — Tiandi Green (Note /0)

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8.1. The
recoverable amounts of CGU have been determined based on value-in-use

calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.
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4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment review (continued)

(1) Goodwill ansing from acquisition of a subsidiary — Tiandi Green (Note 10)
(continued)

The table below summarised the key assumptions used in the goodwill

impairment review and the impacts to the value-in-use calculations upon

unfavourable movements of the key assumptions:

4 BRSTHEFRIEE)

() REHFHE)

() KEREL A — X AR EELR
BEEWF10)(E)

TEBAEERESHEIANEE

BELTERZLBIFE L F

REBFENTZE

Decrease of

Assumptions used Movement of key assumptions value-in-use
Fr AR IERRED EREERD
(RMB’000)
(AR®F )
Compound annual revenue growth rate  4.00% ~ 6.00% Decrease by 1% 67,775
BRFRAERER T 1%
Long-term growth rate 4.00% Decrease to 3% 48,698
REERX TREE3%
Gross margin 48.12% Decrease by 5% 133,616
EME T & 5%
Pre-tax discount rate 1521% Increase to 16.21% 97,178
RAIR R R EIE 1621%
Government subsidy income Continued government Discontinued government 59,358
subsidy income from 2017 subsidy income from 2017
onwards onwards
EOSELELEION BTt Fie BT —tFie
BRI BA BIEBIT BRI A
Based on management's analysis, the goodwill arising from acquisition of EREEENNON - & LilghHd—
Tiandi Green will not suffer impairment loss upon happening of any one of BAXrZEBEIEHEER - WERMDA

the above mentioned changes of key assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 BRSTHETTRYEE)

(CONTINUED)

()  Impairment review (continued) (c) REEHE)

(i) Investment in an associate — Highland Natural Water (i)  RBELRE]—FRASKIRE

The Group performs impairment analysis for investment in Highland AR AR E 2.4 FOBREE 2.1 0 AT 51 B0 & 5

Natural Water when there is any indicator for impairment noted in R EAKERBARETRE  BH

accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.4 and Note 2.10. BRRNKNBREETREI N - B

The recoverable amounts of CGU have been determined based on value- CESENNATKESEERERAE

in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates. BtERLEE - FHAtEAERM
it e

The table below summarised the key assumptions used in the impairment TREMAR S RRAKNREHRE

review for investment in Highland Natural Water and the potential FHRMANTERRELRETERER

impairment losses arising from unfavourable changes of the key BANSBEEENBETRERSRE

assumptions:

Impairment

Assumptions used Movement of key assumptions loss

Fr AR TERREH HEER
(RMB’000)
(AR%T )

Compound annual revenue growth rate  14.21%~29.78% from 2017 Decrease by 1% 124,376
to 2021; 5.009% ~ 12.97%
from 2022 to 2026
BRFRAERER “EAFETF TR 1%
1421%~29.78% : —T -4
EZTZRF5.00%~12.97%

Long-term growth rate 3.00% Decrease to 2% 46,178
REERE TFEE2%
Gross margin 58.05%-59.73% Decrease by 5% 213,675
EM= T & 5%
Pre-tax discount rate 13.00% Increase to 14.00% 121,310
DIEIEERS IZINE 14.00%
Government subsidy income Continued government Discontinued government 17421
subsidy income from 2017 subsidy income from 2017
onwards onwards
EYSRETELON BT tFe BT+ Fie
BRI RS BIEBT R A
Based on management's analysis, the negative movements of the key ERERENSIT  ERAAENEE
assumptions in the table above are unlikely to happen and thus no SR PAAREELEARES  HEE
impairment loss is noted for the investment in Highland Natural Water for —E-RFrtZRA=T-HLEFER
the year ended 3| December 2016 (Note 12). RERRRKORERERERRE

EIE(MEE12) ©
Y%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment review (continued)

(i) Trade and other receivables

Management assesses the impairment of trade and other receivables
according to trade and other receivable’s aging, management's prior
experience and customers’ conditions as well as applying management's
judgments and estimates when determining the impairment to be
recognised. Based on management's best estimates, trade and other
receivables amounting to RMB1,995,000 were impaired (2015: nil) as at 3|
December 2016 (Note 13). Where the basis of judgements and estimates
is different from the initial assessment, such differences will impact the
provision for impairment and the carrying values of the trade and other

receivables in the year.

(d)  Convertible bond

The Group issued convertible bond that is considered hybrid financial
instruments. Significant judgement is required in determining the applicable
accounting standards used for the convertible bond, /FRS2 — Shared-
based Payment against IAS32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation and
IAS39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in relation
to the difference between the nominal value of the convertible bond
and the fair value of the convertible bond at the issuance date. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the market
condition of the convertible bond during commitment date and issuance
date, the contract terms of the convertible bond and the arrangement with

the counter party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e)  Share-based payment

The Group granted share options to a major customer that provide right
to the customer to purchase ordinary shares of the Company at a fixed
price when certain vesting conditions could be met by the customer within
the vesting period. During assessment of the possibility for the customer
to meet the vesting conditions, management considered the current
completion progress for the vesting conditions and future expected
performance of the customer in relation to the vesting conditions, which

require significant judgement.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the executive Directors of the Company that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has two business segments, being the production and sales of

(1) water products, and (2) beer products.

The executive Directors of the Company assess the performance of the
operating segments based on review of their revenue, cost of sales and

gross profit.

Sales between segments are based on the agreed terms between both
segments. The revenue from external parties reported to the executive
Directors of the Company is measured in a manner consistent with that in

the statement of profit or loss.

The amounts provided to the executive Directors of the Company with
respect of total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner

consistent with that of the financial statements.

HER B EM T

BEEst b R &)

(e) ROERHRM
AEER—RFEXPREBRE
ERBERERNZEPRREERN B
EFPREBHAREE THEBKHE
- HAREEEBREEAARIER
I o AT E P w2 5 B R a0 Al
R EREEZRTHREBRENE
AIEKERREPEBRBRENAR
REBERR  ZEEEHETERS
b o

SBEH
EREREAATNTEEMN
BEAETENNEEEETHEED
-

AEBBEEEMBEE()KERMQ)
9 E M E R E R 5

EZFEERWA  HERARREMN
BEHUREDHRBETHE -

S ERHEDENTIED BT 05
21T - RAARTEBERRNE
BINEES A RER AR 25
E—HHHRIE -

ARARRTEFRRHNENRAE
LA NS ERENN SRR LT
E—HHHRHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information provided to the executive Directors of the

Company for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December

2016 is as follows:

DRER (E)

BT -RE+TZA=T—HLHF
CARRPMITESERRNERA
B DEBERMT

H*DW@

Inter-

Water Beer segment
products products elimination Total
KEm BEER 2 HEME r&HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTr AR%TR AR%¥Tx
Total segment revenue DEMAEEE 484,442 388,001 (4,351) 868,092
Cost of sales HERAK 152,489 200,270 (4,351) 348,408
Gross profit for the year EEEN 331,953 187,731 — 519,684
Share of profit from associates FEAERRE R RIFE 26,913 — — 26,913
Adjusted EBITDA ERERN ST E RE SRS 273,659 223,671 — 497,330
Finance costs HHBER (31,502) (8,774) — (40,276)
Finance income B U 19,742 1,296 = 21,038
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREH (23,383) (53,860) — (77,243)
Profit before tax B AT S B R 238516 162,333 — 400,849
Income tax expenses FIEHER (26,308) (15,386) = (41,694)
Profit for the year FERE 212,208 146,947 — 359,155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

%

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 oBERE)
Water Beer
products products Total
KEm BEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR
Segment total assets DEBERE 2,344,374 2,267,631 4,612,005
Investments accounted for using  {F A& EARKIZE
equity method 1,307,508 = 1,307,508
Additions/(reductions) in FRBEE
non-current assets (TREETEHMEHEE)
(exclude deferred income i,/ Cd)
tax assets) 29,778 (53,067) (23,289)
Unallocated KA
AFS AHEEEREE 186,230
Deferred income tax assets EREEHEE 2,818
Corporate assets rEEE 406,300
Inter-segment elimination pak= kg (389,285)
Total assets HWEE 4,818,068
Segment total liabilities NHEERIE 645,763 575,170 1,220,933
Unallocated RO
Deferred income tax liabilities ERFEHEE 20,652
Corporate liabilities tXEE 471,204
Inter-segment elimination 7> B (389,285)
Total liabilities wmeE 1,323,504
ARAREAREE - mw'“
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 oHERE)
The segment information provided to the executive Directors of the BE_Z-AhF+-_A=+—RBL#F
Company for the reportable segments for the year ended 3| December B ARRIMTEFTERENERAA

2015 is as follows:

ERDEHDBERIAT

Inter-

Water Beer segment
products products elimination Total
KEm WEER R rEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR
Total segment revenue DEMAEEE 441366 391,785 (803) 832,348
Cost of sales HEKAK 117,353 213512 (697) 330,168
Gross profit for the year FEERN 324,013 178,273 (106) 502,180
Share of profit from associates i - ONGIbYE 21332 — 21,332
Adjusted EBITDA BRBNETITE REHAAE 249,412 211921 (106) 461,227
Finance costs HHBER (5973) (14,523) — (20,496)
Finance income gy a6t 9,232 l,165 — 10,397
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREH (22,789) (53,695) — (76,484)
Profit before tax B P15 25t A A1) 229,882 144,868 (106) 374,644
Income tax expenses FEHER (38,536) (13,037) — (51,573)
Profit for the year FEFE 191,346 131,831 (106) 323,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5

oEHERE)

%

Water Beer
products products Total
KE e 7E et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETLE  ARETR
Segment total assets DEEERE 1,931,318 1,872,067 3,803,385
Investments accounted for
using equity method EREREARNRE 1,062,595 — 1,062,595
Additions/(reductions) in
non-current assets
(exclude deferred income ERBEE(TREEL
tax assets) FrETEE) M/ ORd) 486,131 (66,009) 420,122
Unallocated RAE
Deferred income tax assets BIEFETHEE 3,038
Corporate assets TEEE 221,696
Inter-segment elimination 2 B I 8 (367,628)
Total assets mEE 3,660,49 |
Segment total liabilities DEEAE 562,898 215,677 778,575
Unallocated KAE
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ JRIEPFISH A (E 38,340
Corporate liabilities rEEE 12,895
Inter-segment elimination pak= kg (366,326)
Total liabilities BEm| 463,484
)/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) PEER(E)
Entity-Wide information BEREEEN
Breakdown of total revenue is as follows: BPARBRANT
ended Decembe
3 H = =
A o b g0 :H jl 2l X 2016 0
ZB-RF ik
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T X
Sales of goods HHEEm 866,041 830,297
Rental of bottled water production line MEKEEFNHES 2,051 2,051
Total st 868,092 832,348

Revenue from external customers of the Group were all derived in the
PRC for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred income
tax assets are all located in the PRC as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

During the year 2016, sales of approximately RMB89,107,000 are
derived from an associate from the water product segment and sales
of approximately RMB96,384,000 are derived from one single external
customer from the beer product segment. (2015: sales of approximately
RMB272,674,000 and RMB107,350,000 are derived from two single

external customers, both are attributable to the beer product segment.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE

Revenue from external customers are derived from the sales of water
products and beer products. The Group also sells bottle preforms and caps
and leases a bottled water production line to an associate and generates

revenue from those activities. Breakdown of the revenue is as follows:

%

HER B EM T

L'ON
SNEREPHIRAREBERHEKERK
WBER - ARENHEERLRRE
T-EB e QAL AZEE QR HE
—RREKEESR  LEZFABT
BUSHA « IWARRAMT :

ded De b
3] = = S
2016 0
—E—XRFE h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T R
Sales of water products IKEmHE 395,335 388,766
Sales of beer products BEEmIAE 383,650 391,785
Sales of bottle preforms and caps MARMREHE 87,056 49,746
Rental of a bottled water production line MERFKEER 2,051 2,051
868,092 832,348

Revenue from external customers of the Group were derived in the PRC
for the years ended 3| December 2016 and 2015.

HE_ZE—XRFr_ZT—RHF+-A
Z+—BIEFE  AEBHIIBERS
ARG HE -

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

7 LAND USE RIGHTS 7 L ERARE

3" H = :

2016 0

—E-ARE h
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R R

At beginning of year F4 31,417 32,141
Amortisation charge (Note 30, Note 36) BHBM (PEE30 - PH5E36) (724) (724)
At end of year FR 30,693 31,417

The Group's interests in land use rights represent operating lease assets.
All of the Group's land use rights are located in the PRC and each has a

lease period of 50 years.

As at 31 December 2016, land use rights with net book value of
RMB30,615,000 (2015: nil) were pledged for bank borrowings with
principal amounts of RMB66,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 (Note 27).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

8

%

Construction
Buildings Machinery Vehicles Others in progress
BT B EH Eft EBIR f
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTRT ARMTR ARMTR AR%TR AR%T:R
At | January 2015 WZE-1%-f-H
Cost AR 145,98 677,653 2937 51,838 33,643 911,369
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (22871) (207,438) (1,609) (15,884) - (247,802)
Impairment () REQ) - (2311) - - - (2311)
Net book amount REFE 120,427 467904 1328 35954 3643 661,256
Year ended 3| December 2015 HZ=F-T1%
TZBZt+-BLEE
Opening net book amount EVREFE 122,427 467904 1328 35,954 33643 661,256
Additions hE 2859 1,330 25 674 4,845 47923
Transfer upon completion THEGEE 7,233 2393 - — (9,626) -
Depreciation charges WEBR (M0 Mitse)

(Note 30, Note 36) (6,560) (44091) (280) (1741) - (53674)
Closing net book amount EXREEE 125,959 47536 1,261 33887 66,862 655,50
At 31 December 2015 R=B-1%+=B=t-R
Cost AR 155,390 681,376 3,152 52512 66,86 959,92
Accumulated depreciation ZiME (29.431) (251,529) (1891) (18625) - (301,476)
Impairment (a) () - (2311) — — — (2311
Net book amount REFE 125959 4753 1,261 33,887 66,86 655,505
Year ended 3| December 2016 EHEZE-AE

TZB=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount EVREFE 125,959 427,53 1,261 33,887 66,862 655,505
Additions AE 1,307 2,335 - 692 3,981 18,315
Transfer upon completion TREEE = 23,204 = = (23,204) =
Depreciation charges WEER (W30 Mite)

(Note 30, Note 36) (6,895) (44941) (267) (2,330) - (54433)
Closing net book amount EXREFE 120,371 408,134 994 32,249 57,639 619,387
At 31 December 2016 R=B-RE+ZB=t-H
Cost A 156,697 706,915 3,15 53,204 57,639 977,607
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (36,326) (296,470) (2,158) (20,955) - (355,909)
Impairment (a) B = (2311) = = = (2311)
Net book amount RE#E 120,371 408,134 994 32,49 57,639 619,387



4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Certain idle machineries with the cost amounting to RMB2,978,000
(2015: RMB2,978,000) were considered obsolete before 2012, and
an impairment provision of RMB2,311,000 (2015: RMB2,311,000)
had been made accordingly based on the assets’ fair value less costs

to sell.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been charged to

the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

8

ME - BERREE)

@) RZZE——Fp KEABARE
2978000L(ZFE—FHEF: AR
#2978000 T ) BV E T E# S
WRIEREE  WIREBEEENAA
EERHEEXABEELARE
2311000(ZFE—FHEF: AR
# 2,311,000 7C) KRB R

nE  BEEKRBHECREA
Ba R - FEWT

ded De »
FEL H = =
2016 0
—E—XRE h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T R
Cost of sales HERA 49,536 48,575
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHE R 73 54
Administrative expenses TRER 4,824 5,045
54,433 53,674

As at 3| December 2016, the Group was in the process of applying
for registration of the ownership certificates for certain of its buildings
with an aggregate net book value of approximately RMB361,000 (2015:
RMB24,980,000). The executive Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy or use

these properties.

There was interest capitalised amounting to RMB2,347,000 in assets under
construction for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil). Interest
was capitalised at the weighted average rate of its general borrowings of
2.35%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 8 WX BERRSESE)
As at 31 December 2016, buildings with net book value of RZE—RE+-_A=+—8"Fk
RMB107,022,000 (2015: nil) were pledged for bank borrowings with HFE R AR %1070220007m(=
principal amounts of RMB66,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 (Note 27). Z-RF: T)NEBEFERERTR
S8 A ARB660000007T kAR
200,000,000 TTHORITRE R (HIEE27)
The category of machinery includes production line leased by the Group to KENDREEASERELENRE
a related party under operating leases with the following carrying amounts: m— RN HANEESR  REF
EMT :
ded De »
5 R = z
2016 0
:g—%\ff— 1%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R K
Cost ZEN 37,145 37,145
Accumulated depreciation at | January —REFIE (15,613) (13,211
Depreciation charge for the year FEHEER (2,402) (2,402)
Net Book amount REFE 19,130 21,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REHBH LN
9  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 EBREE
Distribution
Trade Name Network Total
[i]:3 ik - E @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z-1%
+ZA=t+-BLEFE
Opening net book amount FORERE 53,461 123,263 176,724
Amortisation charge (Note 30, Note 36) BB (W30 - MiEE36) (3,198) (18,888) (22,086)
Closing net book amount ERRERE 50,263 104,375 154,638
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-~%¥
+ZR=t-BLEFE
Opening net book amount FORERE 50,263 104,375 154,638
Amortisation charge (Note 30, Note 36) BB (W30 - MiEE36) (3,198) (18,888) (22,086)
Closing net book amount FRERERE 47,065 85,487 132,552

Amortisation of approximately RMB3,198,000 (2015: RMB3,198,000) is
included in the “Administrative expenses” and RMBI8,888,000 (2015:
RMB18,888,000) is included in “Selling and distribution expenses” in the

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL

Goodwill il

i

%

HER B EM T

0 HmE

As 2 Decembe
2016 0
—E-AE 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R
721,139 721,139

The goodwill of RMB721,139,000 was generated from acquisition of a
controlling stake in Tiandi Green in PRC in 2014. Tiandi Green was viewed
as one CGU within the beer segment. The recoverable amount of the
CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period when optimum market share
is expected to be reached. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are

extrapolated using the estimated growth rates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2016 and 2015

are as follows:

-2

ARET721,139000 THEEELR =
T MEETREKE T Kb e
R - R EwEATRES HA
M—TEREELEMN -REELEMN
MAkEeBEHIERNERAEBENTE
BT ZETEFERTERNEEER
R BETHERABREIREMT
BHENRFHENMEBENRA
Ren=ElEl B8R FHENRS
REERHTIERERR

“E-RFRZE-RFEAEEN
AEMEANERRKRAT

4.00%~6.00%

2016 0
RE ki
2.009%~6.00%
4.00% 4.00%
48.12% 45.66%~47.31%
15.21% 14.98%

Compound annual revenue growth rate ~ EAFYRAIERE
Long-term growth rate REBRE

Gross margin ERx

Pre-tax discount rate TATBAE X
Government subsidy income PUSRCET ON

Continued government subsidy
income from 2017 onwards
B-E-tFiE
HEBFHERA

Continued government subsidy
income from 2016 onwards
BZE—RFE

FHETT AR

Revenue growth rate and gross margin are based on past performance and
management's expectations of market development. The long term growth
rates used are estimated with reference to industry forecasts. The discount

rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the business.

The Directors are of the view that there was no impairment of goodwill as
at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

BARRERENEIREBERR
FEBBHMBSERNEADE - A
ANERBERED2ETEREAG
At FTRMBBR R SRARERE R
RSB BRI A E R -

EERAN T AER-T—AE
+- A+ - BEBLELERNE -
A /
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

[l SUBSIDIARIES | KMEAR

The following is a list of significant principal subsidiaries of the Group as at RZE—XF+-A=+—H  &&E
31 December 2016: EEATEMBARMNZENT

BRHE /AY B :
directly held 2016 0 2016
] ZE-nE W —3-AF
Tibet Zhongj Jishua Industry Co, Ltd. PRC/I January 2004/Limited USDI16,000000 | USDI6,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company
EETREZRRERARLA PE/ZREME-A-A/BRDT | I600000XT | 1600000057 KRR
Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co, Ltd. PRC/3 I October 2005/Limited RMBI18,000,000 | RMBI18,000,000 100% 100%  Water products
("Tibet Glacier Mineral Water") liabiity company manufacturing and sales
BRI BRKERAT ( [BEA)IERK] ) PE/-FFRFTA=T-R/ ARK ARE REREEER
BRAR 118,000,007 118,000,007
Bejing 5100 Management Consulting Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC/I3 July 2007 Limited RMBI,000,000 RMBI,000,000 100% 100%  Water products market
(formerly known as ‘Bejing 5100 Enterprise ~ liability company operation and
Planning Club Co, Ltd.) management
FRI-FEERAWARDA (A °E/RTHECATZR/ ARH NEH KERmAEERER
[LRR-FELRRAESIARLA] ) ARAA 1,000,007 | 0000007
Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Marketing Co, Ltd. ~ PRC/2I April 2010/Limited RMB3,000,000 RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Water products marketing,
liability company promotion, distribution
and retailing
BBk e BARA PE/-2-FEMA-T-R/ ARK ARH £8 BE 2ER
BRAA 30000007 30000007 TEKER
Tibet Tiandi Green Beverage Development PRC/28 April 2009/Limited RMB200,000,000 | RMB200,000,000 65% 65%  Beer manufacturing
Co, Ltd. liabilty company and sales
EEARERRERARLA PE/_RENERAZTAR/ ARK ARE BELERHE
BRAR 200,000,000 | 2000000007
Wealth Keeper Ltd. Haong Kong/30 October 201 2/Limited HKDI HKDI 100% 100%  Investment holding
liabilty company
Af/5-CETR=TR/ &7 IR REER
BRAA
Tibet 5100 Water Resources (HK) Ltd. Hang Kong/6 September 2013/Limited HKD100 HKDI100 100% 100%  Investment holding and
liabilty company raw material purchases
and sales
EEsI0KER (F) ARL Bt/ _R-ZENARR/ARAT 1007 |07 REARRRERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HER B EM T

Il SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) I MEARGE)

@

Material non-controlling interests (a)
The total non-controlling interest of RMB371,965,000 (2015:
RMB319,202,000) represents 35% equity shares of Tiandi Green.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of RMB503,861,000 (2015:
RMB204,549,000) are held in China and are subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide
restrictions on exporting capital from Mainland China, other than

through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial information for Tiandi

Green that has non-controlling interests which is material to the

BEAFERER

K 4% B ) 35%HE S - R H 4
A ANRBE371965000L (=%
—RF: AK®319202,0007T)
R JEFE R A o

NN
5}

7
G

A

BARA
EFEHERSREHERAR
#503,861,000C(ZF — R F :
AR #204,5490007T) » ABR
T IMNEE SR ERREB - 25
3 77 SN I T4 P B g s B U
BEAREHRS - ERLTARE
BEE HE IR 1 o

BEEA IR E i) — BB
R BEERBE

TXEIEAREAMEEERE
R IR i e 25 ) K 3 4% 68 0 B 75

Group. BEHBE -
Summarised balance sheet BEBEXAHE
A De D
2016 0
—E-RE ks
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T R
Current TE
Assets BE 1,172,132 611,309
Liabilities = (373,961) (207,359)
Total current net assets BREEEFE 798,171 403,950
Non-current EHRE
Assets BE 486,555 539,622
Liabilities = (221,970) (31,566)
Total non-current net assets BIEREEEFE 264,585 508,056
Net assets BEERE 1,062,756 912,006

)/
ERAERERAT - FH 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016

I EIRAT RS

|1 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) I HMEARGE)
(@)  Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) EXRFEBRERE)
Summarised statement of profit or loss B ZE
ded De b
El H = S
2016 0
—E—RE h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R K
Revenue WA 388,001 391,785
Profit before income tax bR A S8 A0 A1 162,333 144,868
Income tax expense FrstiE A (15,386) (13,037)
Profit after tax B AE 146,947 131,831
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 E s 3,807 —
Total comprehensive income PEWGERE 150,754 131,831
Total comprehensive income allocated to DR FFERE R
non-controlling interests GO Gt 52,763 46,104
There is no dividend paid by Tiandi Green in 2016 and 2015. AMFER_T—"FEFRZT—1F
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)  Material non-controlling interests (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

i) PNCITE )

%

(@) EXFEREZRE)

Summarised cash flows HenEHE
ended De b
X z = 2
2016 0
ZB-RE h
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T %
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRER
Cash generated from operations REFBEENER S 88,092 177468
Interest received REVE SN 1,296 1,166
Income tax paid BTSN (15,787) (6,159)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHELNREFE 73,601 172,475
Net cash used in investing activities REEBAMANE S FHE (125,644) (234,012)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETBELE
financing activities (FrR)ER ¢ F5E 351,355 (55,640)
Net increase /(decrease) BeRBSEEMEM
in cash and cash equivalents (RS )28 299,312 (H17,177)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ RFFIRREMREEZEY 204,549 321,726
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERNRERFSEEY 503,861 204,549
The information above is the amount before inter-company FEHARRIEMENEE
eliminations.
INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 12 REBEQRANRKRE
ded De b
El = = =
2016 0
—B-RE h
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T B
Opening net book amount FYRREFE 1,062,595 601,263
Additions (a) NE (a) 218,000 440,000
Share of profits (Note 36) FEMEFRE (PHEE36) 26,913 21,332
Closing net book amount FREREFE 1,307,508 1,062,595

AHKERARARF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

12 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(a) The following additional investments in associates were made by the

Group:

(i)

(if)

On 23 September 2016, the Group acquired 7% of the share
capital of Highland Natural Water for a cash consideration of
RMB210,000,000 (On 29 January 2015, the Group acquired
13% of the share capital of Highland Natural Water for a cash
consideration of RMB390,000,000). Highland Natural Water is
a company specialising in the manufacturing of water products.
No significant transaction costs were incurred in the above
acquisitions. Taking into consideration of all past acquisitions,
a goodwill of RMBI1,064,053,000 has been identified in the

investment in Highland Natural Water.

In January 2016, the Group acquired 2% of the share capital
of GT Express for a cash consideration of RMB8,000,000. GT
Express is a company specialising in internet-based express
services. Based on the articles of association of GT Express,
the Group can appoint | out of 7 directors for GT Express
and participate in the operational decision making of GT

Express.

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016

12 REBEQATANREE)
() AEEREBEARELNBEING
B

()

(i)

RZE—REANAZ+=
B Z&EEUARK
210,0000007C ) ] €
B E SRR AKI%H
BARR-_ZE—HFE—A
ZthB - AEENRAR
# 390,000,000 70 1 3R & 1
BUESRRAKIZHH
BRAR) e @BRKRAKEB—
REIREEKERDD
Al FMKBYRELS
ARGEA - EREER
AAKEFFEERB R
EE CEBAINEEAR
AR¥ 1,064,053,000 7T

E-T—XE—A X%
2 LA A R % 8,000,000 7T K9
ReREKRETERESR
WA BREMAEE
RENEHBAERRR
ERBAT - REERE
BHHEBERAA A&
BrRZdERERTEE
ERMI% YAJ2HEE
BEFMEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REERATANREE)
(a) The following additional investments in associates were made by the () AEEREZLLD

Group: (continued)

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill arising from the acquisition of

BT (#&)

AfEH M EBIMNE

B FEEREYRESRRAKE

Highland Natural Water are as follows: RHRBBNFENT
As at 23 As at 29 A
September 2016 a 0 ovember 2014
(date of date o date o
acquisition) q 0 q 0
R-ZB—RE N4 AN
AA=t+=H : = AAA
(KA ) 58 I 2 CEL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR ¥ 7
Purchase consideration: BERE:
— Cash paid -BN#Ee 210,000 390,000 600,000
Less: share of fair value of net B EEFTREREE
assets acquired (see below) BWAREE
(RTX) (36,809) (39,665) (59,473)
Goodwill Bk 173,191 350,335 540,527

The goodwill is attributable to Highland Natural Water's strong market

position and profitability in the sales of water products in the market,

which cannot be separately recognised as an intangible asset.

N BN ERERABNEE -

AHKERARARF

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

12 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REERATANREE)
As at 23 A 9 A
September 2016 anuary 20 ovember 2014
(date of date o date o
acquisition) q 0 q 0
R-B—RE h 4 PO 4
hB=+=8 H = H#H
(KB ) i B & B
o q « RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AL HiE ARBF R R B
Cash and cash equivalents RelkBRe%EEY 83,301 26,576 111,572
Inventories FE 24,586 11,202 15,764
Trade and other receivables EWEZR R
H A &R 281,661 33,331 68,829
PP&E ER S 468,578 400,507 391,827
Land use right T e 31,900 41,494 37,360
Intangible assets BVEE 262,542 187,333 196,535
Trade and other payables ENEZHRK
H AR (288,324) (96,576) (159,745)
Borrowings &R (290,000) (265,000) (270,000)
Dividend to original shareholders FER R AR R AR B (8,095) (3,882) (64,700)
Deferred tax liabilities EREREE (40,304) (29,869) (30,076)
Net assets acquired g REE 525,845 305,116 297,366
Ownership interest acquired P FE P T HE 7% 13% 20%
Share of fair value of net assets acquired EGFTNEBFEE
WAREE 36,809 39,665 59,473

m TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Management performed impairment analysis for the investment in Highland
Natural Water. The recoverable amount of the investment is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a ten-year period when optimum market share is expected to be
reached. Cash flows beyond the ten-year period are extrapolated using the

estimated growth rates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2016 and 2015

are as follows:

%

HER B EM T

RBELNTNRE(#)
EHEBURBRRAKNREETH
EDH - AW AW E 2 8B ERE
MEENEEE -ZFHEERT
EREEEHRAEN BETERRA
BEIREMHNEN T FHREOM
BRENHARERERY - BB+
FHRENRERENERMGFEREX
HER o

CE-RERE-IFEREED
AEMEANERRRMT

2016 0

Compound annual revenue growth rate  # & F U AL KX
Long-term growth rate REERE

Gross margin EFE

Pre-tax discount rate TRRTER IR =
Government subsidy income BRI

—E2-RF

14.21%~29.78% from 2017
to 2021; 5.00%~12.97%
from 2022 to 2026
“EtEEIBEC-FR
14.21%~29.78% ;
CECCEF-BECRER
5.00%~12.97%

3.00%

58.05%~59.73%

13.00%

Continued government subsidy
income from 2017 onwards
H-Z—t&E
HEBUFHERA

5.43%~24.35%

3.00%

62.559%~66.00%

12.70%

Continued government subsidy
income from 2016 onwards
BT Fit
FEBFRABA

Revenue growth rate and gross margin are based on past performance and
management's expectations of market development. The long term growth
rates used are estimated with reference to industry forecasts. The discount

rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the business.

The Directors are of the view that there was no impairment of investment
in Highland Natural Water as at 3|1 December 2016 and 2015.

WARBEERENEDRIEBERR
FEBEBHMSERNOBHHE
BORBEERRD2EZTERAG
At FTRMBBR R ARARERE R
MR EL RS R RV E LR o

EERRN_ZE-—R"ER-_ZT—1F
+tZA=+—8 " RERXAKKNE
B IR E

%

AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Based on the opinion of the Directors, the Group has one material
associate — Highland Natural Water. Set out below is the information

relating to Highland Natural Water.

Place of business/ % of
country of ownership

incorporation interest

Name of entity EEME LA’
BREER At 1 B 3 Bl R EZEAL

Tibet Highland Natural China 40
Water Limited

P mRRAKER A R 40

The share capital of Highland Natural Water consists solely of ordinary
shares. There is no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in
Highland Natural Water.

Summarised financial information for an associate — Highland Natural Water
Set out below is the summarised financial information of the Group's
significant associate — Highland Natural Water, which is accounted for

using the equity method.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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REEENER  A&EHAEF-HE
KB E QA - R RRAK BRR
RAKBRAMERIN T RS -

Measurement

Principal activities method

TEEH TRAE

Manufacturing Equity
and distribution

of water products

BUER D HKER HEa

Bl

= R R IR 7K 0 fix A A el 4 A A
Ao W EEAREENSRAAKNE
mARNIARILE
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summarised financial information for an associate — Highland Natural Water

%

HER B EM T

RBELNTNRE(#)
BENTAMBENBE-SRRAK

(continued) (&
Summarised balance sheet BEREXHMZE

As a Decembe

2016 0
—E-REF i
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T K
Current wE
Cash and cash equivalents HekALEEY 158,601 262,632
Other current assets HRnBaE 160,123 50,345
Total current assets BB EAH 318,724 312,977
Borrowings EE:S (290,000) (500,000)
Other current liabilities Hnsa s (220,259) (106,080)
Total current liabilities BB EEE (510,259) (606,080)
Total current net liabilities e B FERE (191,535) (293,103)
Non-current ERB
Assets BE 753,820 689,485
liabilities BfE (38,278) (28,159)
Total non-current net assets FRBFEELR 715,542 661,326
Net assets FEE 524,007 368,223
ERKARERAT - w8 20 “
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

12 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information for an associate — Highland Natural Water

12 REBERRANREE)
BEQ

D

ENRAMBERNBRE-BRRAK

(continued) (%)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income PERmZHE
ded De be
3] H = :
2016 0
—E—XRFE i
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR K
Revenue WA 471,704 296,677
Pre-tax profit for the year F R B AT R 90,640 70,775
Income tax expense g &R (8,318) (2,868)
Post-tax profit for the year FRERBETE 82,322 67,907
Other comprehensive income HoAth 2 [ o = —
Total comprehensive income PHREAE 82,322 67,907
Dividends received from an associate HEELREKWRE — —

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of Highland Natural Water adjusted for differences in

accounting policies between the Group and Highland Natural Water.

m TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the

carrying amount of the Group's interest in Highland Natural Water:

%

HER B EM T

12 REBERRANREE)
MBERBENHE
REINABEMMBEREEANTIR
AAKEZHREEMN K

ded De »
30 = H :
2016 0
—E-RF 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR -
Opening net assets as at | January R—A—BHNEPNFEE 368,223 300,316
Profit for the year FRME 82,322 67,907
Valuation adjusted from BINKEEM A ERE
additional acquisition 73,462 —
Closing net assets FRFEE 524,007 368,223
Elimination of unrealised profit NEBAERFN B HE
from inter-company sales (767) (471)
Adjusted total net assets HRENGFEE 523,240 367,752
Interest in the associate (2016: 40% MEiE A FIMER(ZF—/NF : 40%
(from 23 September 2016 to (BZE—R"ENAZT=HAZE
31 December 2016 ) and 33% ZE-RFETZA=T—B)&33%
(from | January 2016 to (BZE—"5—-HA—-R%
23 September 2016); 2015: 33% “E-R"ENAZTZH) ZE—HF : 33%
(from 29 January 2015 to (BZZ—RF—A=tNHZE
31 December 2015) and 20% ZZ-AF+ZA=+—H)R%20%
(from | January 2015 to (BEZE-h¥—HA—-HZE
29 January 2015)) ZT-RF—-RA=tTNhA) 187,461 121,679
Goodwil BE 1,064,053 890,862
Carrying value RHEE 1,251,514 1,012,541
ERARRREAT - u
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES 13 EREZXK
A De »
2016 0
—E-RF h4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR R
Trade receivables due from third parties ERE=HTEHK 143,354 204,430
Trade receivables due from associates (a) (Note 38) R LB o 1 R ) FE LK
B5H () (M3E3s) 52,567 836
195,921 205,266
Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables B BKE ST
BAER (1,995) —
193,926 205,266
The recognition of provision for impairment of trade receivables have been BREWE ZHHRERBD AR

included in “cost of sales” in the statement of profit or loss.

(a)  This balance represents amounts due from Highland Natural Water
and Moutai Group Tibet 5100 Mineral Water Co. Ltd. ("Moutai
5100"). They were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 13

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group's trade receivables were
all denominated in RMB. The aging analysis of trade receivables based on

invoice dates is as follows:

%

HER B EM T

BWESZ® (&)
RZE-—ARFRZT—HF+ZA
=+—H FAEEHEKE ST
ARBHE REZZAHE D 2 -
WE SHHBRRIITAT

As 2 Decembe
2016 0
—E—RE h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R B
Within 6 months 6fEAM 131,794 22,732
Over 6 months but within | year HEiR6E BT ERIF 2,699 89,115
Over | year but within 2 years iR | FEBBF 56,914 86,377
Over 2 years iR F 4,514 7,042
195,921 205,266

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables amounting to RMB1,995,000
were impaired and provided for (2015: nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
amounts of trade receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold

any material collateral as security.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the carrying amounts of the above

trade receivables approximated their fair values.

R-ZE—XF+-_A=+—H0 ' BHF
BERERBENEKESIRAARE
1995000 L (ZFE—FHF : T) o

HEAPNRREERR A LLEK
ESRNEERE ARETEREIT
AEAERRIESER

RZE—RNFEFR-Z—RF+=A
—t—B tiEKESRNEEE
HERNABEES -

z

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

14 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@)  Financial assets neither past due nor impaired

The contractual credit terms based on written sales contracts with

customers range from | to 3 months.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due

14 THEENFEES
() ABHARFENZREE

ANEEHERETFPNEEH
SR80 NF—E=@A-

AEHABRENSREENE

nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the nature of EEERZ2ZHINMEEHAR
counterparties or to historical information about counterparty default SHFNBOLENELERE
rates: 1TaTH -
A De D
2016 0
—E-XRE n 5
d b fE I E 7 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR X
- Group | —F 48 12,680 88|
— Group 2 — %248 85,777 5,159
98,457 6,040
A De »
2016 0
—E—XRE h4
® ab EL {1 fEE LY RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T K&
— Group | —£148 162,291 50,006
— Group 2 — %248 87,479 37,695
249,770 87,701

Group | — new third parties/related parties

Group 2 — existing third parties/related parties with no defaults in

the past

m TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016

FIH-TEE=F /@M

FLE-BEERNCENREE=]
/B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[4 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 14

(b)

Financial assets past due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
RMB95,469,000 (2015: RMB199,226,000) were past due but not

impaired. The aging analysis of these trade receivables based on

invoice dates is as follows:

%

HER B EM T

TREENEEEE (©)

(b)

CRMEERENEREE

R-ZZE—A"E+-A=+—8"
ERHERRENERE SN
4 B AN R #95469,00070(=
TR F: AR199,226000
T) o WBEHZBHEH 2K
BIRHRRAITMAT

As 3 Decembe
2016 0
—E-REF h4
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ES
Over credit term but within 6 months BBEEHRETEBEA 33,337 16,692
Over 6 months but within | year HBiR6E BT HER I F 2,699 89,115
Over | year but within 2 years i FETERF 56,914 86,377
Over 2 years HiE2F 2,519 7,042
95,469 199,226
Financial assets past due and impaired () CERERBENEREE

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables amounting to
RMB1,995,000 (2015: nil) were past due and impaired.

AHKERARARF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEHBERNT
I5  PREPAYMENTS 15 FENRE
A De »
2016 0
—E-REF h4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR R
Prepayments made for purchase of raw materials, BEEREME - RS
services, and equipment RERBHTERNRK 238,223 25,063
Prepayment for investment in a third party (a) KRERE=TTH
TEFRIE (a) 17,400 —
Prepaid value added tax IR EN = 2,671
255,623 27,734
Less: Non-current portion B IERBE A
Prepayments made for purchase of equipment (b) BERENENKE®D) (65,476) (6,792)
Current portion mEE S 190,147 20,942
(a)  This balance represents equity investment in a third party company where the (a) DEBERE=ZJRANERKRE -
transfer of ownership title for the shares purchased has not been completed as at RERMBRO M RTHKAEEE
year end. E
(b)  These balances represent prepayments made for the purchase of equipment, the (b) ZEEHKEEABERE (AMEER
ownership of which has not been obtained at year end. FEREKES) MIEREFHE -
The carrying amounts of current and non-current prepayments are MBRERDBENFBNERDELT
denominated in the following currencies: FIEEEtE
A De »
2016 0
—E—NE h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARWF T R
- RMB —AR% 249,256 25,828
- HKD —BT 456 441
- UsD —XT 75 1,381
- EUR —BT 5,836 —
—~ Swiss Franc (“CHF”) —Im AR ( [EREEBRB) ) — 84
255,623 27,734
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HER B EM T

16 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS l6 HittEWRREMEE
A De D
2016 0
—E-REF h4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR R
Amounts due from third parties (b) JEW 3 = 77 50 E (b) 156,944 62,599
Amounts due from an associate (c) (Note 38) & LT Hse & ™ B R E (<)
(P 38) 54,821 21,321
Government grant receivable (a) TS 46 B B IR () 30,810 —
Deposits He 1,186 1,243
Receivable from disposal of AFS HERAHEESREE
O & I K 1,711 —
Others Hits 4,298 2,538
249,770 87,701
Less: non-current portion B IERBE D
Deposits e — (360)
Current portion mENE D 249,770 87,341

(a) Government grant receivable represents government grant that has

been approved by the local government but not yet received by the

Group. It relates to the domestic subsidiaries’ fiscal contribution to

the local economic development as a major tax payer and employer

in Tibet during the year.

AHKERARARF

R 78 B PR MR SR B A A S B A AL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b)

The balances include the following items:

amounts due from a third party company of RMBI3,259,000
(2015: RMB12,599,000), which represents principal of
RMBI 1,500,000 (2015: RMBI1,500,000) and accrued interest
of RMBI,759,000 (2015: RMBI,099,000). The lending is at a
fixed interest rate at 6% per annum and contractual maturity
date is 31 December 2016. The amount was repaid by the

counterparty subsequent to the financial year end.

amounts due from another third party company of
HKD 130,481,000 (equivalent to RMBI16,716,000, 2015: nil),
which represents principal of HKD127,340,000 (equivalent
to RMBI13,906,000) and accrued interest of HKD3,141,000
(equivalent to RMB2,810,000). The lending is at a fixed
interest rate at 10% per annum and contractual repayment
dates are 21 July 2017, | September 2017 and 6 October
2017 for HKD3,600,000, HKD7,600,000 and HKD1 16,140,000

respectively.

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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HttEW R R EMwEEE)
REERBIELATIAR

(®)

W —FE=FRAR
B A R #13,259,0007C
(ZZE—HF: AR®K
12,599,0007T) * BIA& A
R ¥ 115000007c(= &
—hE : AR® 11,500,000
T)REGFHMEARE
1,759,000 L(ZE—RF :
A B #1,099,0007T ) °
HETFME%S  GHF
HEAZZT—A~E+_H
=+—B -ZFBHYEH
R FEREEE -

WS —FHE=FRRRK
T8 130,481,000/ T(% H
PAREE 1167160007
ZE-RE:FT) A
% 127,340,000/ (& H
A A R ¥ 1139060007T )
K FE & F 83,141,000 7T
(Z R AR 2810000
JT) o f& K EE F A X
0% REHERERZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b)  The balance includes the following items:

— amounts due from another third party company of
HKD5,010,000 (equivalent to RMB4,482,000, 2015: nil),
which represents principal of HKD5,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,473,000) and accrued interest of HKD 10,000 (equivalent
to RMB9,000). The contractual maturity date is 7 January
2018. The interest rate is based on the one-year deposit rate
announced by Hang Seng Bank, which is 0.2% per annum for
the period before 8 January 2017 and at fixed rate of 2.5% per

annum from 8 January 2017 onwards.

— amounts due from another third party company of
USD657,000 (equivalent to RMB4,561,000, 2015: nil),
which represents principal of USD651,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,520,000) and accrued interest of USD6,000 (equivalent
to RMB41,000).The lending is at a fixed interest rate at 7% per

annum and contractual maturity date is |4 November 2017.

— amounts due from third party companies of RMBI17,926,000
(2015: nil), which were unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand.

(c) The balance represents amounts due from Highland Natural Water.
They were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the carrying amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does

not hold any collateral as security.

16
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16

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) l6e HttEWREREMEEZ)
The carrying amounts of current and non-current other receivables are B Ko JE 7 B EL b e K R ) BR [E1 B A
denominated in the following currencies: THE®HE :
As 2 Decembe
2016 0
—E—NE ke
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T R
- RMB - AR% 121,647 87,300
- HKD —B 123,551 391
- Usb —X7T 4,572 10
249,770 87,701
INVENTORIES 17 ®E8
As a Decembe
2016 0
—E-REF ks
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR K
Raw materials R 54,476 52,171
Finished goods EN M 8,795 16,096
Work in progress EEm 4,245 4,261
67,516 72,528

The cost of inventories which was recognised as an expense and was
included in “cost of sales” amounted to approximately RMB330,687,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB315,630,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories
did not exceed the net realisable value, and no provision for decline of the

value of inventories was made.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

18 AHHESHMEE

=3 H

%

2016 0
—E-KEF h
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR R
At | January Rn—HA—H = —
Additions NE 460,000 390,000
Disposals HE (289,537) (396,732)
Net gains recognised upon disposal HERERNKER TR
(Note 29, Note 36) (BIzE29 » MizE36) 9,537 6732
Net gains transferred to other BREZHMEEKGER
comprehensive income W F 5 6,230 —
At 3| December R+=R=+—-8 186,230 —

All AFS are denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2016.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

N
i
N

19 RERAEEEY

A

“E-RETZA=T—R At
HEGREELBUARKE -

2016 0
:g—/\_\ﬂi I
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T £
Cash on hand FHEES 632 845
Cash at bank RITFER 1,041,766 627,287
1,042,398 628,132
Denominated in: AHEEE
— RMB - AR 845,093 619,257
— UsSD -%7T 1,254 2,504
— HKD — BT 195,853 6,364
— Others —H1b 198 7
1,042,398 628,132
EHEKERERAT - £ 2016 WAVA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

20

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
amounting to RMB839,440,000 (2015: RMB610,204,000) were held in
the financial institutions located in the PRC. The remaining amounted to
RMB202,958,000 (2015: RMB17,928,000) were held in major financial

institutions located in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of the foreign currencies out of the PRC are subject to
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by

the PRC government.

The Group earns interests on cash at bank at floating bank deposit
rates, which range from 0.01% to 4.4% per annum for the year ended 3|
December 2016 (2015: range from 0.35% to 3.3% per annum).

As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits of RMB2,004,000 (2015:
RMB3,871,000) are restricted as guarantee for payments of imported

equipment.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Number of
ordinary

shares

(thousands)
EEREE
(FR)

Balance as at | January and RIZ-RER-F-E-A-AK
31 December 2015 and 2016 TZA=t-B0&ER 2,568,893

19 BeRkEASEENE)
RZBE-—RE+ZA=+—H ' K
SENHEeRESSENDARE
839,440000TL(ZE—HF: ARK
610,204,000 70 ) (H7E R B RO & Bl IS 45
BT AR202958000C(=F
—RF: AR¥1792800070) BEE
RATHEOETECREERSS -

AARBTHEN BRI RBINE AR
R SNEAE o B - 788 T R B BUR
RAD O FRRASNE & B A KR ) -

AEBRIDRITFERFERRITE
HROFE  BEZZT—RF+=A
S+-BLEFE BEFHNENT
001%%F44%(—E—AE : EFEN
F035% % 3.3%) °

RZE-—RE+ZA=+—H XR
BT F R AR 200400 T(ZF
—HE : AR%3871,0007T)EAERD
R TR -

20 BRARKRGRE

Equivalent
Nominal nominal
value of value of
ordinary  ordinary Share
shares\ shares  premium Total
EBR  EER
REE HRHESE RORE o
HKD'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
TEL ARMTR ARBTT ARETR

25,689 21363 1206829 1228192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES 21 féEfE
Statutory ~ Currency Convertible
Capital surplus  translation bond-equity
reserve reserve differences AFS  component Total
EEREH SHE THRILE TRRES
EXiE  ORE NHEEE SREE -ERNS At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Opening balance | January 2015 ZE-nE-B-ANEUER 146012 118,186  (54016) - — 210,182
Currency translation differences MERBER — — 4391 — — 4,391
Appropriations to statutory REEERALEE (2
surplus reserve (a) — 20,696 — — — 20,696
At 31 December 2015 R=B-EF+-A=+-AH 146012 138882 (49,629 — — 235269
Opening balance | January 2016 ZB-RE-B-BNEUER 146,012 138882 (49,625 — — 235269
Convertible bond — ARG - aEn (F28)
equity component (Note 28) = = = = 18,385 18,385
Currency translation differences NMERBER — — 1,612 — = 1,612
Appropriations to statutory REETRALEE ()
surplus reserve (a) = 19,038 = = = 19,038
Revaluation-gross B - B8 = = = 4,898 = 4898
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+ZA=t-H 146,012 157920  (48,013) 4898 18,385 279,202
AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

21

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@)

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. -

According to the provisions of the articles of association of the
Group's subsidiaries located in PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC
subsidiaries shall first set aside 0% of its profit attributable to
owners after tax as indicated in their statutory financial statements
for the statutory surplus reserve (except where the reserve has
reached 50% of the entity's registered share capital) each year. PRC
subsidiaries may also make appropriations from its profit attributable
to shareholders to a discretionary surplus reserve, provided it is
approved by a resolution passed in a shareholders’ general meeting.
These reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those for
which they are created and are not distributable as cash dividends
without the prior approval obtained from the shareholders in a

shareholders’ general meeting under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not sufficient to make good
for any losses of the PRC subsidiaries from previous years, the
current year profit attributable to the owners shall be used to make
good the losses before any allocations are set aside for the statutory

surplus reserve.

The statutory surplus reserve, the discretionary surplus reserve and
the capital reserve of the PRC subsidiaries may be converted into
share capital of the PRC subsidiaries provided it is approved by
a resolution passed in a shareholders’ general meeting and meets
other regulatory requirements with the provision that the ending
balance of the statutory surplus reserve does not fall below 25% of

the registered share capital amount.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors of the PRC
subsidiaries proposed appropriations amounting to approximately
RMB19,038,000 (2015: RMB20,696,000) to the statutory surplus

reserve.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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)

(@)

RIBEARE B L7 B O 8 2 B
(ThEKEAR ) nAERA
Bl - REIB A REGF R
EEMBREANEREA ARG
R MBE 10% BIEEEBH A
B e EEREMK
AK50%EBRIN) o B EIKE AR
A HEEBRA G BBAIRESR
HAERKEBCR B MERIUEER
BHLEE - BRABERUME
HON ZEFREE TS RELL
R BREREBR TERER
RERAE EFRBAEIN - TR
SRERERENE -

EEERHABE TRARMHT
BUF /B 2 B DA BT F BB 1R -
FENERARGNEAERR
ETE BB AR S AR (E A&

e

PEREARKEERBRDE
2 EERHLABENEAR
BeUELRRASEBIR
ERWEANAEMEERET
BRERR - BFRIETE AR
AR IEONERBA B
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

22 REFBH

M -

%

EERBEERETHBRRENDIT

2016 0
—E-RE il
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT X
Deferred tax assets: EERBEE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — 12 E AU Bl R REF A& &=
after 12 months 2,566 2,597
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — 128 A AU Bl R FRIE &
within 12 months 252 441
2,818 3,038
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFBEBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered —BANERZWENELCHEERE
after 12 months (18,526) (21,027)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — 1@ A ERELHIESE
within 12 months (2,126) (17,313)
(20,652) (38,340)

AHKERARARF
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

The gross movement of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 EEFTBR(E)
EXHBEENELHBEENE

is as follows: AR
endaed . ece De
3 H = B
2016 0
—E-NE 04
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR X
Deferred tax assets: BEBEEE :
At beginning of year F1) 3,038 2,524
Statement of profit or loss (charge)/credit Bak(GtA) /B2 (220) 514
At end of year FR 2,818 3,038
Deferred tax liabilities: BEEBEAR :
At beginning of year F10 (38,340) (35,835)
Statement of profit or loss credit/(charge) BarER/(GTA) 2,488 (12,994)
Settlement of withholding tax for REERREAEERMB
dividend declared 15,200 10,489
At end of year FR (20,652) (38,340)
The (Credit)/Charge to statement of profit or loss is as follows: Bax(BR) /FAWT :
ded De b
2016 0
—E-REF 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR K%
Deferred tax assets BRI E 220 (514)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREA G (2,488) 12,994
(Credit)/Charge to statement of BRER(ER) /FHA(HEE33)
profit or loss (Note 33) (2,268) 12,480

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. -
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016
were not offset because the deferred tax assets and liabilities related to
income taxes were levied by different taxation authorities. The movement

of deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

Provisions for

impairment

22

Deferred

income

EIEFRGH (&)

%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

R-ZBE-—RE+-_A=+—R0 &L
HBEEERBBEHEHIREE  JHH
REZEELHEEEREERMAM
B T RBEEBEK - FAE
EFEHEAERBENEHNOT -

Undistributed Other
profits from  temporary

subsidiaries differences

REWEAR  HtERE

Total

RERE  BERE NADRANE =3 At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR AR%Tr ARMTR ARBTx
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE
At | January 2015 RZE-1F—-F—H 347 1,671 — 506 2524
Credited to statement of profit or loss @& S0 — 351 — 163 514
At 31 December 2015 RZF-RE+-A=1-H 347 2,022 - 669 3,038
Charged to statement of profit or loss B&&zTA — (3) — (217) (220)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-AF+ZA=1-H 347 2019 - 45 2818
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE
At | January 2015 R_Z-RF-A-A — - (10,489) (25,346) (35,835)
(Charged)/credited to statement BR&R(GTA)/ER
of profit or loss — — (15,200 2,206 (12,994)
Settlement of withholding tax REERRELEENH
for dividend declared — — 10,489 - 10,489
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFT-A=1—H = = (15,200) (23,140) (38,340)
Credited to statement of profit or loss B&EFE L = = = 2,488 2,488
Settlement of withholding tax REERRELERNH
for dividend declared = = 15,200 = 15,200
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RET-A=+-H - — — (20,652) (20,652)

AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's certain subsidiaries’ future
taxable income would not be available against which their temporary
losses could be utilised and also the losses of those subsidiaries would not
be offset by the taxable income of other subsidiaries within the Group,
as there is no legally enforceable right to do so. As such, the Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB8,994,000 (2015:
RMB7,705,000) in respect of losses amounting to RMB35,988,000 (2015:
RMB32,738,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable income.
Losses of RMB35,988,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB32,738,000)

will expire on the following dates to offset the future taxable income.

22

EEMEHRE)
R-ZE—XE+-A=+—0" &2
B E THE R BERRERBHA
BELIRAERMEE  MZEWEB
REMEBEETTAAEEEMHBE D
A ERBMARE  BRUTAR
ERMAOE AT @B BITER B
SEVESATEERRERTLAD
B8 AR B359880000(Z T — 1
F 0 AR¥327380007T ) HERIE A
BHEEARKES994000L(ZE—H
£ ARE77050007T) e RZE—X
F+_A=t+—BEBERRERFLK
ANHE) AR #359880000(— 2 —
F: AR3273800070) M ERIER
JEmBHEI T

ded De b
2016 0

ZE-RE ke
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T B

Expiring in RUTFEER

— 2016 ——E—RF — [1,375
— 2017 ——E—+tF 10,568 10,568
— 2018 ——E-N\F 10,795 10,795
— 2021 ——E-—F 14,625 —
35,988 32,738

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB183,338,000 (2015:
RMBI11,748,000) had not been recognised for the withholding tax that
would be payable on the distributable retained profits amounting to
RMBI1,833,379,000 (2015: RMBI,118,393,000) of the Company's PRC
subsidiaries. The Group has no intention to distribute these retained

earnings out from the PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HER B EM T

23 DEFERRED REVENUE AND ADVANCES RECEIVED FROM 23 EBEZEWARFEWREFR(RE)
CUSTOMERS (CURRENT)
A De be
2016 0
—E-RE Ak
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT B
Deferred revenue R A
— Sales of Water Cards —HEKER 8,459 27,826
— Government grant (Note 24) — BUR# B (M 5E 24) 2,248 1,692
Advances received from customers BREFH 4,003 15,350
14,710 44,868
As at 3| December 2016 and 2015, the Group's deferred revenue and RZE-—REFRZZTE-RE+ZA
advances received from customers were all denominated in RMB. =t—H AEEHNETWARTBR
HEFREEHAARKEE -
24  DEFERRED REVENUE (NON-CURRENT) 24 BEWA(GERE)
X Decembe
2016 0
—E-RE h4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR R
Government grant I8 T 5 Bh 26,489 23,750
Less: current portion (Note 23) B mEER S (M 23) (2,248) (1,692)
Non-current portion FEREE D 24,241 22,058
A/

AEKERARAA -« £/ 2016 179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

25 TRADE PAYABLES 25 BNEER
2016 0
—E-KEF h
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR X
Trade payables ERE SR 78,055 72,827
As at 3| December 2016 and 2015, the aging analysis of trade payables RZE-R"ERZZE-—AF+=RA
based on invoice dates is as follows: =t+—H EREFHHNENES
RHBRE T
A De »
2016 0
—E-—XEF h
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR X
Within 3 months 3EAM 51,903 52,362
Over 3 months but within 6 months B3 EABTEBEA 15,717 10,652
Over 6 months but within | year HiBeEABTER | F 4,354 7,774
Over | year but within 2 years iR | FETBR2F 5215 1,092
Over 2 years iR F 866 947
78,055 72,827

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group's trade payables were all

denominated in RMB and were not interest bearing.

m TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HER B EM T

26  ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES FRRE AR H MR
A De »
2016 0
:E—ﬁﬁ h 4§
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T K
Salary payables ER#FHE 7,987 7,306
Welfare payables FERREA 9,072 4375
Payables for value added tax and other taxes — JEGULEN K EMIIE 8,250 5,041
Accrued operating expenses EREEER 6,286 5,486
Payables for purchase of equipment BERBRNNRE 4,759 23,590
Audit fee payable [t &t & 5,000 6,050
Professional service fee payable BNEXR%E 4,066 3,944
Payables to third party import agents ENE=FEORERIEA — 2,307
Deposits from customers REER 1,402 [,417
Others Htth 6,748 5317
53,570 64,833

The carrying amount of the accruals and other payables are denominated

BREMRAMGEMNTNEREENLT

in the following currencies: FIEHEHE
A De »
2016 0
—EB-RE 04
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR X
— RMB —ARE 46,013 59,245
- UsD —XT 1,376 2,105
— HKD — BT 6,097 3,483
— Singapore Dollar (“SGD") — KT 84 —
53,570 64,833

)/
ERAERERAT - FH 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 BANK BORROWINGS 27 SRATRER
A De »
2016 0
—E-RE h4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T R
Non-current FRE
Long-term borrowing from a bank — Secured (a) REIRITHER —BEIF,E#H () 190,000 -
Current wE
Current portion of long-term borrowings RHRITERO AR S
from banks — Secured (a) —BERER () 120,000 —
Current portion of long-term borrowing RERITEROEIER S
from a bank — Guaranteed (b) —B1RE (b) 100,000 150,000
Short-term borrowing from a bank — RERITIE N — BRERER (0
Guaranteed and secured (c) 66,000 —
Short-term borrowings from banks — REEIRITIER — BIRE (d)
Guaranteed (d) 170,000 50,000
456,000 200,000
Total borrowings B LE 646,000 200,000

All borrowings were denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2016 and

2015.

m TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)

The balances include the following borrowings from banks:

(i)

The borrowing with principal amount of RMB200,000,000 was
secured by the Group's factory plant with net book value of
RMB71,942,000 (Note 8) and land use rights with net book
value of RMB29,569,000 (Note 7).The interest rate was based
on the directive interest rate announced by the People’s Bank
of China Lhasa Central Sub-branch, which was 2.75% per
annum as at 31 December 2016. The tenure of the borrowing
is from 2 November 2016 to 23 September 2018. According
to the loan agreement, principal of RMB10,000,000 and
RMB 190,000,000 are required to be repaid in November 2017
and September 2018 respectively. Accordingly, borrowing
amounting to RMB10,000,000 was recorded as current liability
and borrowing amounting to RMB190,000,000 was recorded as

non-current liability as at 31 December 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

27 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)  The balances include the following borrowings from banks: (continued)

(i) The borrowing with principal amount of RMB120,000,000 was
pledged by 28,099,562 shares of a third party. The interest
rate was based on the directive interest rate announced by
the People's Bank of China Lhasa Central Sub-branch, which
was 2.75% per annum as at 3| December 2016. The tenure
of the borrowing is from 18 January 2016 to |7 January 2018
and repayment terms are based on the following schedule:
repayments of RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000
and RMB105,000,000 on 18 June 2016, 18 December 2016,
I8 June 2017 and 17 January 2018 respectively. The first
two payments had been made by the Group based on the
contractual terms. Due to certain terms of the borrowing
agreement, the bank has the potential right to request
for repayment of the loan before the contractual maturity
dates. Accordingly, the outstanding borrowing amounting to
RMB110,000,000 was recorded as current liability as at 3|
December 2016.

(b) The borrowing with principal amount of RMB200,000,000 was
guaranteed by Tibet Glacier Mineral Water, a subsidiary of the
Group. The interest rate was based on the directive interest
rate announced by the People’s Bank of China minus 1.98% per
annum, which was 2.77% as at 3|1 December 2016. The tenure of
the borrowing is from 27 January 2015 to 27 January 2017. The
loan principal has been repaid based on the agreement as follows:
RMB50,000,000 each in July 2015 and January 2016. The remaining
loan balance of RMB100,000,000 is repaid on 27 January 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(c) The borrowing with principal amount of RMB66,000,000 was
guaranteed by the Company and secured by the Group's factory
plant with net book value of RMB35,080,000 (Note 8) and land use
rights with net book value of RMBI1,046,000 (Note 7). The borrowing
bears fixed interest at 2.35% per annum and the tenure is from 25
March 2016 to 24 March 2017.

(d)  The balances include the following borrowings from banks:

(i)  The borrowing with principal amount of RMB70,000,000 was
guaranteed by the Company and another subsidiary of the
Group. The borrowing bears fixed interest at 2.35% per annum

and the tenure is from 10 November 2016 to |0 November
2017.

(i)  The borrowing with principal amount of RMB100,000,000
was guaranteed by the Company. The borrowing bears fixed
interest at 2.35% per annum and the tenure is from 25 March
2016 to 25 March 2017.

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

27 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group has the following undrawn bank borrowing facilities:

Fixed rate: B E I -
— expiring within one year — | FRTH
— expiring beyond one year — | F1& 3 H
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RITER (&)

REBHARRARITREREELT

2016 0
—E-REF ik
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR R

130,000 —
34,000 —

164,000 —

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's borrowings were repayable as

R-E-—AET-A=+-0 4%
MRS

follows:
A De »
2016 0
—E-RE N4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR e
Within | year | £ 456,000 200,000
Between | and 2 years | E25F 190,000 —
646,000 200,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE BOND — LIABILITY COMPONENT

Convertible bond - liability component #kESs - 8RS

28
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As 2 Decembe
2016 0
—E-—XRE h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR =5
458,066 —

The Group issued 5,250 6.0% convertible bonds at a par value of
HKD525,000,000 on 24 June 2016. The convertible bonds mature three
years from the issue date at their nominal value of HKD525,000,000 or
can be converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the bondholder's
option at a price of HKD3.50 per share. The fair values of the liability
component and the equity conversion component were determined
at issuance date of the bond. The fair value of the liability component
of the convertible bond is determined using a market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible bond and the remaining residue value is
allocated to the equity component. The fair value change of the convertible
bond between the commitment date and issuance date is recognised in the
profit and loss (Note 32). The convertible bond is secured by the entire
issued shares of Wealth Keeper Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group and can be early redeemed upon certain events at the option of
the bondholder or the issuer. The early redemption options are closely
related to the host contract of the convertible bond and as such they were

not separated from the host debt as derivatives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

188

REBEZM T
28 CONVERTIBLE BOND — LIABILITY COMPONENT (CONTINUED) 28 ABRRESF-EERSE)
The convertible bond recognised in the balance sheet is calculated as REEABRERNIRRESFE
follows: LU
ded De »
3 = = 2
2016 0
—RE A
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R X
Face value of convertible bond issued RZE-—RENAZTOETZ
on 24 June 2016 ARRESFEE 469,613 —
Transaction costs R PR (2,728) —
Equity component (Note 21) b (MeE21) (18,385) —
Fair value change between the commitment EER B RETE B2 HE
date and issuance date (Note 32, Note 36) RABEEEH (M2 MFE36) 7,839 —
Liability component on initial recognition RZZE—RFARNAZTHA
at 24 June 2016 NFERRNAEDS 456,339 —
Interest expense (Note 32) FEZER(PHFE32) 16,114 —
Interest paid EAREE (14,387) —
Liability component at 31 December 2016 R-ZE-A"E+=A=+—H
WEEB 458,066 —
The fair value of the liability component of the convertible bond at 3| RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H" A#
December 2016 amounted to RMB455,774,000, which is calculated using BREZEEFPNOABEAARE
cash flows discounted at the rate of 7.34% and are within level 2 of the 45577400070 * R734% M B H &

fair value hierarchy.
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OTHER GAINS, NET

%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

29 HaRE - FEHE

ded 31 Decemb
2016 0
ZE-RE ke
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR R
Government grants (a) BB (a) 45,056 37,825
Gain on disposal of AFS (Note 18, Note 36)  BEAIHEESHMEENKE
(B5E 18 - FI5E36) 9,537 6,732
Others Hit 1,026 (154)
55,619 44,403
(a) The amount mainly related to the government grant received by (@ HZABEIZFRAEERBRNT
the Group as follows: according to “FERH#¥1997 No. 24", “HiEt I BT % B - AR AR B 1997
52010 No. 93", "HFMEF2010 No. 29", “HF&IEEF2012 F4% ][R & F20105
No.101", “HAEFM BF2015 No.0l", “HFHHABEH2016 No. 91" 93%% |~ [ 1B B BE ¥ 20105529
and "ERNESERMAZRERSBARCEERNETE 5% 1 T4 5 B B 720128 101
R (E17) No8", the Group is eligible to receive subsidy income S TR F B F 2015501
from the local government in relation to the domestic subsidiaries’ SRl TRIRBE 20165915
fiscal contribution to the local economic development as a major tax RIFRELBERMAERR
payer and employer in Tibet. The Group recognised such income RXBFARGEZENETE
of approximately RMB42,822,000 for the year ended 31 December R(ET)E8H ] ~EBHEA
2016 (2015: RMB26,040,000). AHFEATPREE 5K
BSEBEANB AR MM L
BREREREL B ER MG K
FRBBA - REEREEZ
T-R"E+ZA=1+—RHIEHF
EHANEBEBANBARE
42822000 L(=F—HF : AR
# 26,040,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REBEZM T
30  EXPENSES BY NATURE 30 EMEIINER
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and AAHERE  HERDHER KT
administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BERNEROWWT
ended Decembe
3] H = i
2016 0
—EB-REF Al
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T X
Raw materials and consumables used FT R R A R R 243,199 240,024
Decrease in the balances of inventories ERKm MR mIF B AR
of finished goods and work in progress 7,316 2,681
Transportation costs BRI 51,957 51816
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 8) ME - BERREITE (M) 54,433 53,674
Employee benefit expenses (Note 31) EEGMER(ME3) 73,032 76,500
Advertising and marketing expenditure EERTZHEEER 19,669 14,002
City construction tax and education surcharge TR ERHE K NE 13,676 12,424
Electricity and other utility expenses BHREMERER 12,842 9,715
Rental expenses He B 5,159 4,426
Consulting and other service expenses E MRS E R 6,104 4474
Repair and maintenance BB RRE 2,538 3,154
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) T AR B (P 7) 724 724
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) B EESHE (M) 22,086 22,086
Auditor's remuneration ZEE I &
— Audit services — B R 6,000 6,050
— Non-audit services —EEE R — 400
Exploration rights expenses REEER 500 548
Office and consumption expenses WAREFRER 4,611 6,872
Provision for impairment of trade R E 5B ERE (MEE13)
receivables (Note 13) 1,995 —
Others Hig 4,696 3,770
530,537 513,340
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

%

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EERANEHA
2016 0
—~E h
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR K%
Wages and salaries IERY® 61,123 64,454
Provision for medical and other BERHEMESRNER
employee benefits 4,009 3,382
Contributions to defined contribution REHFERAREFEIHR
pension scheme (a) 4,577 5,039
Contributions to the housing scheme (b) B I (b) 3,323 3,625
73,032 76,500
(a)  Pension scheme () BIAREFHE
The Group pays contributions to publicly administered pension AEERAH  AHEERLE

insurance plans on amandatory, contractual basis. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments are

available.

(b)  Housing scheme
In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations, the Group
is required to make contributions to the Chinese state-sponsored
housing fund at 10% of the salaries of the PRC employees. At the
same time, the employees are also required to make a contribution
at 10% of their salaries out of their payroll. The employees are
entitled to claim the entire sum of the fund under certain specified

withdrawal circumstances.
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

()  Five highest paid individuals

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year include two (2015: three) Directors whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 42. The

emoluments paid and payable to the remaining three (2015: two)

individuals during the year are as follows:

BERFNEME)

(©

LEREHFMAL
AFEEAKELLERFMAL
BREMA(ZE-RF: =ZR)E
2 REOMSSRHIE2M
ENDTREK - REEEHR
ENTE#B=R(ZFT—R%F:
mEVERALHMEWT

ended Decembe
2016 0
—E-KEF h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR K%
Basic salaries and allowances ER%& KRR 3,475 2,125
Contribution to pension scheme BRE AT 31 29
Bonuses TEAL 167 39
3,673 2,193
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FIATEE
2016 0
—E-REF 4
Emolument bands e & E
HKD 1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T
(approximately RMB850,001 to (AR 850001 LE
RMBI,275,000) AR 1,275,000 7T 2 2

HKD 1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
(approximately RMB1,275,001 to
RMB1,700,000)

1,500,001 77T & 2,000,000 7% 7T
(HAREE 1275001 TE
AR |700,0007T)

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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33

FINANCE COSTS, NET

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

32 BIKEAR FE

%

2016 0
—E-KEF h
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR K%
Foreign exchange losses, net (Note 36) AL - FE (M 36) (7,477) (5,683)
Interest costs on a borrowing from government T & 75 8 & A = (8,836)
Interest costs on bank borrowings RITEZMNEER (8,650) (5,810)
Interest costs on convertible bond (Note 28) AR EHFISE A (Mi5E28) (l6,114) —
Other finance costs HAb 81158 (196) (167)
Loss on fair value change of convertible bond ABRkESFAAEEEDER
(Note 28, Note 36) (BzE28 + MizE36) (7,839) —
Finance costs HBER (40,276) (20,496)
Interest income FIEWA 21,038 10,397
Finance income 10 ON 21,038 10,397
Finance costs, net BRER  FH8 (19,238) (10,099)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated statement

33 FiiSHiER

W RESSBE R ARNER

of profit or loss represents: EREE -
2016 0
ZB-RE h
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R X
Current income tax BHIPTSH 43,962 39,093
Deferred income tax (credit)/charge (Note 22) BRIEFTSH (&), (GTA) (HIFE22) (2,268) 12,480
Income tax expense PriSHER 41,694 51,573
ERARRRRES - 58 s u
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

33 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 33 FSBEAE)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the REBMBRIERAFEFTHNHE
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate as follows: BRIRERAEEREAE S LN IER

A HREMT

ded 31 Decemb
3 z = =
2016 0
—E-KEF h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR R
Profit before income tax BR PSR AT 400,849 374,644
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 15% RETEBE 15% 5 EHTFIE 60,127 56,197
Preferential tax rates on income of certain ATEEERHNRARZERH
group entities (a) BENE (a) (28,149) (25,135)
Income not subject to tax BARBA (2,422) (1920)
Tax on deemed revenue BERANT S 337 298
Tax losses of certain group entities for which no W ERRELMEHEE
deferred income tax assets were recognised e TEEERNNEERE 2,188 2316
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TR E 9,613 4,617
Withholding tax from distribution of profits Hh B 2 ) 9 B A
by the PRC subsidiaries iy a: 0ka et g — 15,200
Income tax expense Frisii &R 41,694 51,573
The weighted average tax rate was 10.4% for the year ended 3| December BE_ZT-—R"ET__A=T—HLF
2016 (2015: 13.8%). B METFARER104%(ZF—H
F138%) e
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Under current laws ARRRFERSTME L - RIZF
of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains SHERITER KRR ETME
or other taxes payable by the Company. The group entities established BPREH - BEN - RAIH - BRE
under the International Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin AUMHEMTIE REABRLHS
Islands are exempted from British Virgin Islands income taxes. MEREBRAREKNINEEERE

HRBNEBRABENMAENR

m TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

HER B EM T

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 33 FEBBEAME)
The group entities incorporated in the PRC are subject to PRC enterprise ERBEEMA I EBERAEZM KT
income tax. Major operational entities of the Group are located in the BEZERER BE_T—RFT+=
Tibet Autonomous Region of the PRC and were entitled to preferential A=T—BLtFE AEEBURPEH
income tax rate of 9% for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 9%); AHERRENFEEEEREX %
the remaining entities incorporated in the PRC were taxed based on the (ZE—RF %) MAERERR
income tax rate of 25% for the year ended 3| December 2016 (2015: KHBNPEIMAINERENE
25%) as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules —E-RE+ZA=+—8H ﬂ:ﬁr
and regulations. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 1‘&?7‘;1‘5 28 ) R B P A5 50 AR B e AR D1
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 5% FEHE(ZE—0F : 25%) &
B BBNEHEK 6% (ZF -0
F o 165%)MTEEHE
(a) Based on the tax ruling announced by the PRC central tax () WREPEPRBEEEEDMHOH
authorities, the corporate income tax rate of Lhasa is 9% for years BRI WENDEMEHRE
2015 to 2017 and from 2018 onwards, the corporate income tax RZE-—HFE_T—LFR
rate will resume to 15% if no further announcement of preferential 9% BT~ \Fi  mEE—
tax treatment is made. The relevant deferred tax balances had been TRBBERBEE  AEEMR
measured based on the expected tax rates applicable in the future. BRMERIREZR 15% - HEE
EHRBEEHRDRBEERN RS
BB E T IAGTE -
EARNINGS PER SHARE 34 BRER
(@)  Basic earnings per share @) BREXEF
Basic earnings per share for 3| December 2016 and 2015 is RZE-—RERZZE-AF+Z
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the A=+—BNERERBAHG
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares BRER  KRAEE AEIEH
outstanding during the period. AFERRABA B BT E B
IREFIHEL
ded Decemb
3 = = i
2016 0
—E-KRE h
Profit attributable to owners of the ARRAVGER ANEEFE
Company (RMB'000) (AREFT) 307,724 276,967
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBRHME TS
shares in issue (thousands) (LAF&T) 2,568,893 2,568,893
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) BREM(EXREE)
(RMB cents per share) (BRAR%ES) 11.98 10.78
)/

AHKERARARF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBHEM T
34  EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

35

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two
categories of potential ordinary shares: the convertible bond issued
on 24 June 2016 and share options granted under a share option
scheme on |6 December 2015. As at 31 December 2016, when
these two categories of potential ordinary shares are assumed to be
converted into ordinary shares since the issue dates, the calculated
earnings per share under each circumstance is more than the basic
earnings per share. As such, the convertible bond and share options
are determined to be anti-dilutive (2015: no dilutive potential
ordinary shares), and not to be included in the calculation of the
diluted earnings per share this year. With no dilutive potential
ordinary shares, the diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share for the Company as at 3| December 2016
and 2015.

DIVIDENDS
Dividend of HKDO0.04 per share (amounting to HKD 102,756,000, equivalent

to RMB87,825,000 based on the exchange rate on the payment date of

such dividend) was declared and paid in 2016 in respect of the year ended
31 December 2015 (2015: dividend of HKDO.04 per share (amounting to
HKD 102,756,000, equivalent to RMB81,074,000 based on the exchange
rate on the payment date of such dividend) was declared and paid in 2015

in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014). No dividend has been
declared by the Company in respect of 2016 (2015: RMB86,058,000).

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 36 RMEFHHELNRSE
ded 31 Decembe
2016 0
—E-KEF h
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR K%

Profit before income tax bR P15 0 A A 400,849 374,644
Adjustments for: A
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) T sk PR SE (Pt 7) 724 724
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) BREAESHEMFE) 22,086 22,086
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 8) ME - BB R EITE (FEEs) 54,433 53,674
Net foreign exchange losses (Note 32) B 5 E5180% 28 (9T 32) 7,477 5,683
Deferred income credited to statement of SrBaRmBETERA

profit or loss (2,122) (11,785)
Interest income, net FEBWA - FHE 3,726 4,249
Share of profit of associates (Note 12) B RnEla R (M 12) (26,913) (21332)
Gain on disposal of AFS (Note 18, Note 29) REAHEESREENKR

(BIsE 18 - BHEE29) (9,537) (6,732)

Loss on fair value change of convertible bond ARRESAAEBEEDER

(Note 28,Note 32) (Bt3E28 » i3 32) 7,839 —
Operating profit before working capital changes &&E& &2 B AWK E HR 458,562 421,211
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERD /(M) 5,012 (7,207)
Decrease in trade receivables JEWE 5 F0m D 11,340 127018
Increase in prepayments and other receivables B FRIE B H A UK N (195,916) (22,636)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable FERESEm/ () 5,228 (44,513)
Increase/(Decrease) in accruals and FERERRHMENT

other payables s,/ CR) 6,495 (7,345)
Decrease in deferred revenue and BRI R FaE P RO

advance received from customers (30,713) (17,484)
Cash generated from operations RETHMELENRS 260,008 449,044

BRXERAERLE - £§ 2016v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEHBERNT
36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 36 RETEFMEENRS(E)
Significant non-cash transaction BR¥RLERS
During the year, amounts due from a related party of RMBI56,500,000 FA-RBREAEE F=ALEHS
were offset against amounts due to a third party for the same amount 2SS B BAREE R REA
based on the settlement agreements among the Group, the third party and % 156,500,000 7T 52 & < 55 = 75 O [A)
the related party. EEFRIAMK -
37 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37 FEHEMNIRAE
(a)  Capital commitments () BEARMEE
As at 3| December 2016 and 31 December 2015, capital RZZE—RFER-_ZE-AF+=
expenditures contracted for but not yet incurred were as follows: A=+—H BEENERRES
ZEARHSMT
As 2 Decembe
2016 0
—EB-RE h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR R
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB KRE 113,316 —
Equity investment BERE 53,600 —
166,916 —

n TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016



37

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases offices and plant under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

37

%

ERI BT

AHNRAREEE)

(b) REHEERE
AEERBENATEUENLERLN
MBRRERERE - ATEAA
BUB K & T EIE T AR R HIEM

TR
As 2 Decembe
2016 0
—E-KEF h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR K%
Within | year | AR 2,543 3,485
More than | year but within 5 years | E54 173 2,454
2,716 5939
Contingent liabilities () HAREE

The Group provided a financial guarantee to an associate amounting
to RMB260,000,000 as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
RMB260,000,000) (Note 3.1). The guarantee is provided for bank
borrowings obtained by the associate with the remaining amounts
of RMB240,000,000 as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
RMB240,000,000), the period of the guarantee is from 20 July 2015

to 20 July 2017,

R-ZE—XR&+-A=+—8"
AEBEH -—MBEQRIRMT
A B % 260,000,000 7T #) B 75 #&
R ZE-—RAF+ZA=+—
H: A K #2600000007c ) (K
H3D  RERRABZEED
ARZE—ARE+ZA=1+—
AREENALREAARE
240,000,000 ST R ERT B AT IR 4
(ZZE—hF+ZRA=+—H8H:
AR #240,000,0007T) o HHER
HRH-_FE-—AF+A=-+HZE
“E—+FtHA=+AH-

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEHBERNT

38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 BHREXRS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other B 5 IR R I S — S E E B
party or exercise significant influence in making financial and operating BREERREMERZENAL
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to HEEHIEEIMEE R@E T -

common control,

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Wang Peter Jian, the AEERTIBALE(TERRR &R
“Controlling Shareholder”. i o
(a)  Transactions with related parties () HEBINXS
ded De b
3 A =
2016 0
ZE-R¥ b4
RMB’000 RMB000
ARMTR X
Revenue from KB TFIRENRA
~ Leasing of a production line to an associate (i) —THEEESRT—HE =27 (i) 2,051 2,051
~ Selling of bottle preforms and —HERANBRET—H
caps to an associate(i) NN ) 87,056 49,746
~ Selling of water products to an associate (iv) — —$HEKEmM T —REE A (iv) 2,371 715
Purchase of R
— Goods from entities under common control (i) —RIFE—ZEHIMEBREEN () 2 39
— Equipment from an associate (ii) — [ —FRB & 1% R ERBR 3R A (i) 950 —
Settlement of Bl
— Equipment purchase from an associate (ii) — [ —FEE & 1 B ) R A AR B (i 950 —
~ Trade and other receivables from -RE—ABEARAMNERE SR
an associate (if) ME A FEUR (i) 54,859 73,571
~ Trade receivables from an associate (iv) - RE—EBERANERE SH (v 439 —
Prepayment made by an associate for — R E A A RERE M EN
purchase of bottle preforms and caps (ii) T FRIA (i) — 16,429
Cash advance to an associate (ii) BT —EBEARNE BN () 33,500 —
Net settlement of payables to third parties R E R AR5
on behalf of an associate and an entity ERF B =FMER i)
under common control (iii) = 75,070
Financial guarantee for an associate (Note 37 (c)) A— R & A RIREMFEER
(F5E37 () 260,000 260,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

HER B EM T

38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 38 BBARZ(E)
(@)  Transactions with related parties (continued) (@) HEBRBINRZ(E)
(i)  Goods were bought from an entity controlled by a major (y EVREBEBRETEHERR

individual shareholder based on normal commercial terms and

conditions.

These were the transactions between the Group and Highland
Natural Water, an associate of the Group. The transactions

were based on agreed terms between both parties.

(i) These were transactions with Highland Natural Water and
an entity controlled by the Controlling Shareholder based on
agreed terms among all parties in 2015 to facilitate Highland
Natural Water and the entity controlled by the Controlling

Shareholder to settle their payables to third parties.

(iv)  These were the transactions between the Group and Moutai
5100, an associate of the Group. The transactions were based

on the agreed terms between both parties.

(b)

Balances with related parties:

The balances with related parties are as follows:

(i)

B fGRAR e = B A A BRI
BB RS o

EHAKEERERER
KOEEBBBERT) 2
M5 RERHNE
HETH R i
E

BUEERBE-_T-—HEFE
ARBERT  BeRX
AR —HE R ERREE
FINERCHENRS @ %
RSRET mRRAKM
FERBREESHNEER
B=AZNEENK

ELAREEEFA5100
(REBMHBE LR 2H
MR  ZERHDHER
ETHE T e MO ISR T

BREB T AR
SRR T BRI T

A De D
2016 0
—~"E A4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR S
Trade receivables (Note 13) W E 5k (MEE 13)
— An associate-Highland Natural Water —BENE -SRERRAK 49,396 —
— An associate-Moutai 5100 —BERA-F 485100 3,171 836
52,567 836

AHKERARARF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 38 BBARZ(E)
(b)  Balances with related parties: (continued) (@) HEBRBINRZ(E)
As 2 Decembe
2016 0
—E-KEF h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR i
Other receivables H A FE U R
— An associate-Highland Natural Water —BE N R —RRRAK
(Note 16) (BizE16) 54,821 21,321
The above amounts due from Highland Natural Water were F RS RRAKTIERER
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. o ESAMTA AR ERIER -
() Key management compensation () FEEBEASEHM
The compensation paid/payable to key management is shown below: BN/ EREEERASHRM
E I UNNE
ded De b
2016 0
—E-RE 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR i
Salaries and other short-term HeMNHMESEEEREA
employee benefits 9,626 9,601
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

On |6 December 2015, the Company granted 25,200,000 of share options
to China Distribution. Under the agreement, China Distribution has the
right to purchase up to 25,200,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
price of HKD3.00 per share within 0 years from | January 2016 if certain
performance conditions are met by China Distribution during the vesting

period from | January 2016 to 3| December 2018.

The vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the achievement
of the prescribed sale and performance targets by China Distribution

within three years commencing from | January 2016.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash. As at 3| December 2016, none of the share options

was exercisable.

The Company determined that the above share option scheme was a sales
incentive to its major customer — China Distribution. As at 31 December
2016, management assessed the possibility for China Distribution to meet
the vesting conditions within the three-year period from | January 2016
and concluded that none of the vesting conditions could be met within
the three-year period. Accordingly, no debit of revenue was recorded for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (nil for the year ended 31 December

2015) relating to the sales incentive under the above share option scheme.

39

%

HER B EM T

BRpEESA
R-ZB—RE+-A+X B AQF
] 3 £ ¥ 4% H 25,200,000 17 BE AR A o
BERZE ME-_Z— X F—HA—8
BE-_ZE-\F+-_A=+—HIH
FEORATECEENTETRR
- AIBEZE—"5—A—BHRA
M+ER FECEFRNS300
BITHEREE AR &S 25200000
WA o

BRENEBXTELXRNE T
—NF-A-HRAN=FREDE
EHEMERB RS HRITORR

ARBYEEIERBETES URE
MERBEEZERE R _F—RF
TZA=+—R  BEBBEETE -

AREH ERBBETIET RHE
IBEP-—PELENHEENE -1
“E-RFtZA=t+—H BEE
AETRECFE-E-RF—HA—
Bt = F HIf M 2 5 B IR (A 7T B8
- YEHERRBAR=FHERNE
Em BRI - Bt RBE
CE-RETZA=+-HLEFEY
EOAE ERBRAETEATAHEE
HEEENRAKREE_T—0F
TZA=t—HILFE : £)-

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

40 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 10 January 2017, the controlling shareholder of the Company
had entered into agreements with three independent investors to sell
approximately 1.83%, 3.50% and 4.67% of the total issued share capital of
the Company, respectively, with selling price of HKD3.50 per share. On
I'l January 2017, the controlling shareholder of the Company had entered
into an agreement with an independent investor, Khorgos Tianshan No.|
to sell 18% of the total issued share capital of the Company with selling
price of HKD3.50 per share. Upon completion of the above-mentioned
transactions, Khorgos Tianshan No.l will become the single largest

shareholder of the Company.

40 EBEEBXRBHEEE

RZZE—+F—A+8 AREER
BRE=-UBIREAZZRZED A
HE 491.83%, 3.50% K 4.67% 7K 1 A
BRBEEANRG LEERASE
3508 RZE—tF—A+—
B ARAERBREE—(UBIIRE
AEBREFTXRL-—FEEHRZLE
I8 ANREFERETHRG - LR
EBRAFR3S0ET - Ll R H T
% EBREIRL-SFERAERRAF
ME—HABRE -

4]  BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 4] EKATEEEBEREREESH
Balance sheet of the Company ANTEEEER
As 2 Decembe
e 2016 0
—E-KREF h 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR B
Assets BE
Non-current assets 3'5%@?&
Loans to subsidiaries EXTHEBAT 1,375,156 1,176,030
1,375,156 1,176,030
Current assets REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RelkBRe%EEY 95,057 208,769
Prepayment TR RIE 478 1,849
Other receivables H R IR 348,233 —
443,768 210,618
Total assets HMEE 1,818,924 1,386,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

%

HER B EM T

41 ARRREERERKEEEZD(E)

(CONTINUED)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) ERAREEREBRE)
A De be
ote 2016 0
ZB-XRE h
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR X
Equity and liabilities EaRAE
Equity attributable to owners EAREEAEMLESR
of the Company
Share capital ELZN 21,363 21,363
Share premium W5 (8 1,206,829 1,206,829
Reserves [ (a) 110,693 8,037
Retained earnings BiFla (a) (5,268) 96
Total equity EHEH 1,333,617 1,236,325
Liabilities a8
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bond-liability component AR ES - B EEH 458,066 —
458,066 —
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables HAhFERTR 27,241 150,323
27,241 150,323
Total liabilities BEAE 485,307 150,323
Total equity and liabilities EaRABERE 1,818,924 1,386,648

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 2017 and was signed on its behalf.

FU Lin f$3%
Director E%

EZgCR_FT—tE=A-1+MmHA
HERARREERBRIAERT -

LIU Chen &l2
Director 2%

AHKERARARF

vﬂ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 41 ARAEERERREFEZH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a)  Reserve movement of the Company (@) AARFEEH
Retained Othe
earnings eserve
Bl = At (4 3
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR R
At | January 2015 RZZE—HE—F—H 12,296 (63,116)
Profit for the year FEMHE 68,874 —
Dividends paid BEARE (81,074) —
Currency translation differences INETE AR = 71,153
At 31 December 2015 R-E-HF+=-A=+—-H 96 8,037
At | January 2016 KR-_ZE—R"E—H—H 96 8,037
Profit for the year FE 82,461 —
Dividends paid BEARE (87,825) —
Convertible bond-equity component Al ES — =B = 18,385
Currency translation differences INEIFTEER = 84,271
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB-R"E+=A=+-H (5,268) 110,693
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42  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

42

The remuneration of each Director and the chief executive for the

year ended 3| December 2016 is set out below:

Discretionary

EEENRER

%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBEEME

(A EBEERIETHAEME
EEERFETHABBZE=Z
—"NEFE+ZA=+—HLEEH

FENESIT

Employer’s

contribution

to a benefits Allowance

Salary bonuses scheme  and benefits Total
Exm

% H¢  BERA BRGEMR REREN At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARMTR AR%TR
Mr. Fu Lin (i) IS4 () 1,108 — — — 1,108
Mr. Yue Zhigiang ity e 1,108 - — - 1,108
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong ZBITT 426 - — — 426
Mr. Liu Chen AREE 845 67 15 — 927
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen EZR%E 1,406 — = 8l ,487
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway ~ FHEFEAE 409 — — = 409
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin B 409 — — = 409
Mr. Wong Hak Kun Ingks 1,278 — 5 — 1,293
6,989 67 30 8l 7,167
Y%

BHAKEFRERAT - 8 2016
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42

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHEM T

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(A)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
The remuneration of each Director and the chief executive for the

year ended 3| December 2015 is set out below:

4) EBEETIREZRE)

A EBEERFETHRAEMES(Z)
BEERTETHAEHE-Z
—RFE+-A=+—HILEEH
FIENWT

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary to a benefits

Salary bonuses scheme Total
EEm

e BIGIEAL BAIET 2R fst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBETRT ARETR
Mr. Yu Yiping, Wallace (i) A1 —F S A (i) 1,009 — 12 1,021
Mr. Fu Lin (i) WA () 1,042 — — 1,042
Mr. Yue Zhigiang EERTE 1,042 — — 1,042
Ms. Mu Chunhua (iii) BEFELL (i) 267 — — 267
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong ZHEIT L+ 401 — — 401
Mr. Liu Chen AREE 779 16 14 809
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen B E 838 — — 838
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FHRELE 385 — — 385
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin BIpK e 385 — — 385
Mr. Wong Hak Kun ITrEtE 1,202 — 16 1,218
7,350 16 4 7,408

() Mr. Fu Lin is the Director and also the chief executive of the Company for (i) MMEER-_Z—RER=F

both 2016 and 2015.

(i) Resigned on 6 October 2015.

(i) Resigned on 29 August 2015.

There was no remuneration or estimated money value of other

benefits during the years ended 3| December 2016 and 2015.

m TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. + ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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42

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(B)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 3| December 2016, no retirement benefits
operated by the Group were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to
or receivable by a Director in respect of his services as a Director or
other services in connection with the management of the affairs of

the Company or its subsidiaries (2015: nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no payments or benefits
in respect of termination of Director’s services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to or receivable by a Director; nor are any
payable (2015: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available Directors’
services

During the year ended 3| December 2016, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available

Directors' services (2015: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors (2015: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2015: nil).

42

%

ERI BT

EEENRERE)

(B)

AHKERARARF

BERRNER
BE_Z—R"Ft+ZA=1T—H
HEE  BEEEIEERES
RIS SEL AR EEE MR
B MENREZBHEREBLN
REHENB AR ZEREEN
Ho At AR 765 ) 25 5 & 1) 0 AR PR 4R
(Z2—h8F %)

EELILEA
BE_Z-R"F+-A=1t—H
LFE  HEREERBERLE
BB ME R IR AT
FRIEN - BEENERKKA
FENREREMNF( -5
F:F)

RESBREOF=SRENKE

BE-Z-R"F¥t-H=t—H
HFE TEREZRBFHE=
HRERE  F=MERRA
EB(ZF—RF:F)-

ARNEE ES2XEHZE
FREERAREANER - £
ERREMRZHER
BMENES  EFXIHEE
FREEBARTANER £
EFS AR (ZF—0%F:
),

=

EERXS  ZHAANNEKX
B
RERINFAREAEGE - HE
FEARRAERTXNT AARE
EENETHEBEREDZ (TR
ERIAR)NASEXTERH
MEARS ZHEREN(ZF
—RF:FT)e
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEHBHE

Profitability data
(RMB million)

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Profit for the year

Profitability data (%)

Gross profit margin

Operating profit margin

Net profit margin

Return on total shareholders' equity

Assets and liabilities data
(RMB million)

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Assets and Working Capital data

Current assets ratios

Gearing ratios

BAYE
(AR%EER)

A

£

BT

ERFIE

BANE )

£F%

R

Tk

BE S S R

aESEMYE
(AEBEER)

FRBEE

RBaE

RBEE

rREEE

KAREBA
i

EEARDESHE

RBAELE

ARBENLE

\l’ N
- o
M =

—2-

868
520
393
359

60%
45%
41%
10%

2,880
1,938
631
693

3,123

40%
24.01%

832
502
363
323

60%
44%
39%
10%

2,635
1,025
403
60

2,878

28%
5.89%

773
484
460
385

63%
60%
50%
13%

2,215
1,221
327
158

2,678

36%
6.08%

787
576
529
461

73%
67%
59%
[ 7%

1,661
1,596
455
72

2,497

49%
6.69%

682
555
479
411

81%
70%
60%
19%

915
1,729
412
30

2,202

65%

Note:

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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